
  1 

 

Agenda 

   
 
Contact Officer: Michael Flowers, Democratic Services Officer 

Tel: 07895 213755 

 

E-mail: Michael.Flowers@southandvale.gov.uk 

Date: 20 September 2021 

Website: www.southoxon.gov.uk  www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk 

 

 

 

A MEETING OF THE 
 

Joint Audit and Governance Committee 

 
WILL BE HELD ON TUESDAY 28 SEPTEMBER 2021  AT 6.30 PM 
FIRST FLOOR MEETING SPACE, 135 EASTERN AVENUE, MILTON PARK, 
OX14 4SB 
 
To watch this virtual meeting, follow this link to the council’s YouTube channel.   
 

Members of the Committee: 
South Oxfordshire District Council 

Mocky Khan (Co-Chair) 

Peter Dragonetti 

George Levy 

Jane Murphy 

 

Vale of White Horse District Council 

Andy Foulsham (Co-Chair) 

Amos Duveen 

Simon Howell 

Mike Pighills 

 

Preferred Substitutes: 
South Oxfordshire District Council 

David Bartholomew 

Sam Casey-Rerhaye 

Victoria Haval 

Alexandrine Kantor 

Axel Macdonald 

Jo Robb 

Alan Thompson 

Ian White 

Celia Wilson 

Vale of White Horse District Council 

Nathan Boyd 

Andy Cooke 

Eric de la Harpe 

Alison Jenner 

Janet Shelley 

Elaine Ware 

 

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request.  These 
include large print, Braille, audio, email and easy read. For this or any 
other special requirements (such as access facilities) please contact 
the officer named on this agenda.  Please give as much notice as 
possible before the meeting. 

Public Document Pack

mailto:Michael.Flowers@southandvale.gov.uk
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCTj2pCic8vzucpzIaSWE3UQ


  2 

 

 
1  Apologies for absence   

 
To record apologies for absence and the attendance of substitute members.   

 
2  Minutes  (Pages 4 - 12) 

 
To adopt and sign as a correct record the Joint Audit and Governance Committee 
minutes of the meetings held on 30 March 2021 and 5 July 2021.   
 
3  Declarations of interest   

 
To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests in respect of items on 
the agenda for this meeting.    
 
4  Urgent business and chair's announcements   

 
To receive notification of any matters which the chair determines should be 
considered as urgent business and the special circumstances which have made the 
matters urgent, and to receive any announcements from the chair.   
 
5  Public participation   

 
To receive any questions or statements from members of the public that have 
registered to speak.   
 

FORMAL DECISIONS 

 
6  Treasury Management Outturn Report 2020/21  (Pages 13 - 33) 

 
To consider the report of the Head of Finance. 

 

MONITORING REPORTS 

 
7  Internal Audit Activity Report - Second Quarter 2021/22  (Pages 

34 - 68) 
 

To consider the report of the Interim Internal Audit Manager. 

 
8  Internal Audit Management Report - Second Quarter 2021/22  

(Pages 69 - 82) 
 

To consider the report of the Interim Internal Audit Manager. 

 
9  Internal Audit - Progress Update  (Pages 83 - 102) 

 
To consider the report of the Interim Internal Audit Manager. 



  3 

 

 
10  Statement of accounts 2019/20   

 
To receive a verbal update on the statement of accounts 2019/20 for South 
Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils. 

 
11  Work programme  (Pages 103 - 105) 

 
To note the committee’s work programme.   

 
Patrick Arran 
Head of Legal and Democratic 



 1 

Minutes 

 

  

OF A MEETING OF THE 
 

 

Joint Audit and Governance Committee 

 
HELD ON TUESDAY 30 MARCH 2021 AT 6.30 PM 
THIS WAS A VIRTUAL, ONLINE MEETING. 
 

Present:  
Members: 
South Oxfordshire District Councillors: Peter Dragonetti, Mocky Khan (Co-Chair), and Jane 
Murphy 
Vale of White Horse District Councillors: Amos Duveen, Andy Foulsham (Co-Chair – in the 
chair), Simon Howell, and Mike Pighills  
 

Officers:  
Steve Culliford, Richard Green, Simon Hewings, Bertie Smith and Richard Spraggett  
 

Also present:  
Kevin Suter (EY, the external auditor), Councillor Andy Crawford (Vale of White Horse 
District Council), and Councillor Leigh Rawlins (South Oxfordshire District Council)  
 
 

53 Apologies for absence  
 
Councillor George Levy had sent his apologies for absence.   
 

54 Minutes  
 
RESOLVED: to adopt as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 26 January 
2021 and agree that the chair signs them as such.   
 

55 Declarations of interest  
 
None 
 

56 Urgent business and chair's announcements  
 
The committee held a minute’s silence in memory of former Vale councillor Roger Cox, 
who had passed away.   
 
The Chair reported that this was likely to be the committee’s last virtual meeting and that 
future meetings were likely to be held in person.   
 

Page 4

Agenda Item 2



 2 

57 Public participation  
 
None 
 

58 Statement of accounts 2019/20  
 
The committee received a verbal update on progress with the external audit of the 
councils’ statement of accounts for 2019/20.  Kevin Suter of EY reported that good 
progress had been made on the audit but that EY’s report was not ready for the 
committee’s consideration.  At this stage, no significant issues had been identified with the 
councils’ accounts.   
 

59 Statement of accounts 2020/21  
 
The committee considered the interim head of finance’s report on the preparation of the 
councils’ statement of accounts for 2020/21.  The report also presented revised 
statements of accounting policies for approval.   
 
The committee noted that the deadlines for completing the accounts for the 2020/21 
financial year, ending on 31 March 2021, had changed as a result of the Redmond review.  
The draft accounts now had to be prepared by 31 July each year, and the final accounts 
had to be audited, approved by the committee and published by 30 September each year.  
The committee noted that the accounts should be brought to its meeting for consideration 
on 28 September 2021.  In answer to questions from the committee, officers reported that 
they were not expecting any material impairments of the councils’ assets to arise from the 
audit of the 2020/21 accounts.   
 
The committee also noted that the councils’ Exchequer service had been brought back in-
house and that the councils were introducing a new financial management system.   
 
The committee reviewed the statements of accounting policies.  These remained 
unchanged from the previous year and the content was identical for South and Vale.  The 
committee was content with the policies.   
 
RESOLVED: to  
 
(a) note the progress on completing the 2020/21 statement of accounts; and  
 
(b) approve the revised statements of accounting policies as shown in Appendix 1 

(South Oxfordshire) and Appendix 2 (Vale of White Horse) to the interim head of 
finance’s report.   

 

60 Internal audit activity report - fourth quarter 2020/21  
 
The committee considered the interim internal audit manager’s report, which summarised 
the outcomes of internal audit activity at both councils during quarter 4 of 2020/21, being 
the period 1 January to 31 March 2021.   
 
The committee noted that, on this occasion, the report did not include any internal audit 
reports with limited assurance ratings.  However, several internal audits were due for 
completion in April.   

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



 3 

 
RESOLVED: to note the interim internal audit manager’s report on internal audit activity at 
both councils during the fourth quarter of 2020/21. 
 

61 Internal audit management report - fourth quarter 2020/21  
 
The committee considered the interim internal audit manager’s management report for the 
fourth quarter 2020/21, being 1 January to 31 March 2021.  This set out progress against 
the audit plan and summarised the priorities for the first quarter of 2021/22.   
 
The audit manager reported that the internal audit team had assisted with the Covid-19 
response, which had impacted on the team’s progress against the audit plan.  Some work 
would be transferred into 2021/22.   
 
The committee thanked officers for their work.   
 
RESOLVED: to note the interim internal audit manager’s management report for the fourth 
quarter of 2020/21.   
 

62 Internal audit plan 2021/22  
 
The committee considered the interim internal audit manager’s report, which proposed an 
internal audit plan for 2021/22.  The report also set out the process for setting the internal 
audit plan and for calculating the resources available.   
 
The audit plan set out internal audit’s priorities for 2021/22.  During much of 2020/21, 
internal audit staff had been working on the council’s Covid-19 response.  Some internal 
audits had been deferred because of this and were now included in the 2021/22 audit plan.   
 
Committee members supported the audit plan for 2021/22.   
 
RESOLVED: to approve the internal audit plan 2021/22.   
 

63 Work programme  
 
The committee noted its work programme.   
 
 
 
 
The meeting closed at 7.15 pm 
 
 
 
 
Chair Date 

 
 

Page 6

Agenda Item 2



 1 

Minutes 

 

  

OF A MEETING OF THE 
 

 

Joint Audit and Governance Committee 

 
HELD ON MONDAY 5 JULY 2021 AT 6.30 PM 
HELD AT 135 EASTERN AVENUE, MILTON PARK, OX14 4SB 
 

Present in the meeting room: 
Members: 
South Oxfordshire District Councillors: Mocky Khan (Co-Chair – in the chair) and Jane 
Murphy. 
Vale of White Horse District Councillors: Andy Foulsham (Co-Chair), Simon Howell, and 
Mike Pighills. 
Officers: Steve Culliford and Simon Hewings  
 

Remote attendance: 
Vale Councillor Amos Duveen (committee member)  

Officers: Yvonne Cutler-Greaves, Michael Flowers, Richard Green, Allison Holliday, Paul 

Howden, Jeremy Lloyd, Richard Spraggett, and Sally Truman. 

External auditors: Tom Archer and Kevin Suter (EY) 

South Councillor Leigh Rawlins, present as a guest 

Vale Councillors Andrew Crawford and Debby Hallett, present as guests  

 
 

64 Apologies for absence  
 
South Oxfordshire Councillors Peter Dragonetti and George Levy tendered apologies.   
 
As only one South Oxfordshire councillor was present, the meeting was inquorate.  Two 
committee members (or their substitutes) from each council were required to make a 
quorum.  The Chair announced that an informal meeting could proceed but that no formal 
decisions could be made.  Councillors agreed to proceed on with an informal meeting, until 
such time as a quorum could be achieved.   
 

65 Minutes  
 
Due to a lack of quorum, the item was deferred to the next meeting of the Joint Audit and 
Governance Committee.  
 

66 Declarations of interest  
 
None. 
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 2



 2 

67 Urgent business and chair's announcements  
 
The Chair informed the committee that the democratic services officer for the Joint Audit 
and Governance Committee would be changed, with Steve Culliford being replaced by 
Michael Flowers as the assigned officer. The committee expressed appreciation for the 
support Steve Culliford had provided over the years. 
 
The Chair also explained to the committee that the order of business would be changed 
due to a lack of quorum. The committee would meet informally and consider non-decision 
items until the appropriate membership was in attendance to achieve a quorum, at which 
point the meeting could then revert to a formal meeting of the committee to consider the 
original order of business. 
 

68 Public participation  
 
None. 
 

69 Corporate risk review  
 
Councillor Jane Murphy entered the room during this item, which meant the meeting was 
now quorate and could proceed as a formal committee meeting and make decisions.   

 
The Cabinet member for corporate services and transformation introduced the report. It 
was explained that this was the standard six-month report which the committee was asked 
to note. The key points raised were thirty-seven corporate risks for South Oxfordshire and 
thirty-eight for the Vale being identified. Both authorities had a reduction of nine risks for 
each. The top risk remained a cyber security breach, and three new risks had arisen 
relating to the failure to procedure new insurance, the need to streamline revenue streams, 
and the government actions surrounding the Oxford to Cambridge Arc. It was however 
noted that the Arc was beyond the district councils’ control. Three risks in South 
Oxfordshire and two in the Vale increased the net risk score and these included issues 
such as third-party business plans not being supported and a lack of informed decision 
making for planning. An additional point was made surrounding Covid-19 with the main 
risk centring on staff wellbeing and remote working. New risks mentioned related to the 
failure to realise revenue streams, failure to prevent fraud from Covid-19 test and trace 
and business support funding, and a lack of preparation to help support vulnerable 
individuals in the future. 
 
A question was raised relating to the technology risk on the third-party business continuity 
plan and why a ‘Yes/No’ tolerable answer was not included in the table. The officer 
explained that a continuity plan was still being worked on with Capita and therefore had 
been deliberately left blank until the plan had been completed further. A follow up question 
was asked relating to the risk appetite and why the councils had an amber risk assurance 
level despite some not having a way forward. The officer clarified that the average values 
are used to calculate the risk and that the overall risk appetite led to an assigned risk level 
of amber. 
 
A request was made by the committee to take on the speed of changes relating to Covid-
19 as opposed to the rest of the risk register. The query was responded to with an 
explanation that the Covid-19 risks had been transferred to the triage risk register. 
 

Page 8

Agenda Item 2



 3 

RESOLVED: to note the half yearly progress review of the corporate risk registers as 
outlined in the risk management strategy. 
 

70 Health and safety progress review  
 
The Cabinet member for corporate services and transformation introduced the report. The 
committee was informed that this was a half yearly progress review of the health and 
safety actions. The key headlines included the introduction of monthly key performance 
indicators, which would be reported to the senior management team. Additions would also 
include improved incident reporting and support for staff, including Covid-19 assistance. 

 
RESOLVED: to note the half yearly progress review of health and safety actions, as 
outlined in the health and safety strategic review, and note the progress made against the 
corporate health and safety action plan. 
 

71 External auditor's audit results report 2019/20  
 
The external auditor, EY, introduced the results for the 2019/20 accounts. The auditor 
Kevin Suter also introduced Tom Archer, the new EY audit manager for South and Vale. 
The committee were informed that substantial progress had been made on the audit of the 
2019/20 statement of accounts, although this work was not fully completed. The key item 
to be resolved related to the collection funds and obtaining sufficient information to support 
items within income expenditure and grant income. The income relating to the Community 
Infrastructure Levy was the most significant, due to accounting being done on a cash basis 
and so a total account might not have been accurate with a possible adjustment needing 
to be made. 

 
The auditor explained that when EY’s audit plan had been presented in September 2020, 
there was an outstanding question on the evidence to support revenue expenditure that 
had been capitalised. For one item there was a lack of evidence to support transactions 
analysed which required further evidence to be obtained. An additional comment was 
made on the pension liability with recommended adjustments being made to the disclosure 
notes. With regards to the value for money audit, the committee was informed a risk had 
been identified around the services that had exited the Five Council Partnership contract. 
While it was conducted appropriately, it was noted that the Finance department was 
overstretched, but that the timing of the Covid-19 pandemic had been a significant part of 
this issue. 
 
A second aspect raised was the financial resilience of the councils. It was noted that work 
in previous years concerned the financial resilience of South Oxfordshire District Council, 
due to the projected use of revenue reserves to balance the budget. It was noted that now 
both councils were budgeting to increasingly use revenue reserves to balance the 
budgets.  This has been made worse by the pandemic. It was also noted that there had 
been no significant action to close annual funding gaps at either council, and the external 
auditors advised that, in their review of the 2020/21 financial statements, they would need 
to be assured that appropriate action was being taken to reduce the budget gap at both 
councils. 
 
The committee asked why the Community Infrastructure Levy recording issue had been 
identified this year and not previously. The response was that the issue was an 
understatement of income.  It had arisen now as a CIL transaction had been picked for 

Page 9

Agenda Item 2



 4 

review as part of random sampling and analysis of the item had identified the issue around 
income recognition.  No similar item had been picked for review in previous years.  
 
An additional question was raised by the committee on the summary of adjusted 
differences with items around revaluation, leases, and properties. The auditor responded 
that there were no underlying concerns, but the matter would be kept under review.   
 
RESOLVED: to note the report of the external auditor. 
 

72 Statement of accounts 2019/20  
 
The Head of Finance introduced the statement of accounts 2019/20. The committee was 
informed that the external audit was incomplete, which could have an impact on the final 
figures presented. The committee was asked to agree to the accounts, subject to the final 
versions being agreed by the auditor and confirmation and that the final versions were not 
materially different. It was noted that if the figures were materially different, they would be 
brought back to the committee for reconsideration.  

  
A question was raised on what the material difference would be classed as. The officer 
explained the Community Infrastructure Levy example, which could have a £700,000 
difference, would be an example of where the accounts might need to be referred back to 
the committee.  However, the material difference would vary dependent on the total figure 
and would be a matter discussed by the officers, auditors, and the committee’s co-chairs. 
 
RESOLVED: to  
 
(a) approve the statement of accounts 2019/20 for South Oxfordshire District Council 

and to authorise the co-chair to sign the document if no material differences are 
raised; and  

 
 
(b) approve the statement of accounts 2019/20 for the Vale of White Horse District 

Council and to authorise the co-chair to sign the document if no material differences 
are raised. 

 

73 Annual governance statements 2019/20  
 
The Democratic Services Team Leader introduced the item. The officer explained that 
were two statements, one for each authority, and these formed part of the statement of 
accounts and explained how the councils complied with their codes of governance. The 
statements covered 2019/20 and ended on the 31st March 2020. The statements were 
written a year ago and had been approved by internal audit and the senior management 
team. After the committee approved the statements, the leaders of each council and the 
chief executive would be asked to sign them off.  

 
RESOLVED: to  
 
(a) approve the Annual Governance Statement of 2019/20 for South Oxfordshire 

District Council; and  
 
 

Page 10

Agenda Item 2



 5 

(b) approve the Annual Governance Statement of 2019/20 for the Vale of White Horse 
District Council. 

 

74 Letters of representation to the external auditor  
 
The Head of Finance introduced this item. He explained that these letters of representation 
were the draft letters for signing off the statement of accounts that were required to be sent 
to the external auditor. It was added that as EY was not in a position to finalise the 
accounts, the committee could agree that they were content with the letter and for minor 
changes to be made by the co-chairs, although substantial changes would mean the item 
would return to the committee for consideration. 

 
RESOLVED: to agree that the committee’s co-chairs from South Oxfordshire and Vale of 
White Horse may sign their respective letters of representation to the external auditor. 
 

75 Internal Audit annual report 2020/21  
 
The Interim Internal Audit Manager introduced the report.  He explained that the report 
was a summary of the internal audit work for the year ending in the 31 March 2021 and 
advised on the overall adequacy and internal control environment that had been looked at. 
It was noted that the overall view was that satisfactory assurance could be achieved from 
the controls and general risk and control processes analysed. Of the eight financial audits 
looked at, five had limited assurance, and three were satisfactory. All financial audits that 
were planned had been completed, although the plan had been revised due to Covid-19, 
with three audits deferred. 

 
The committee asked a question on the impact remote working had and whether 
performance had improved over time since the changes had occurred. The officer 
explained that performance had been impacted at the beginning of the pandemic with 
remote working, however the officer explained that this was easing off and that they would 
be able to work better once hybrid working was in place. 
 
RESOLVED: to note the interim internal audit manager’s report. 
 

76 Internal audit activity report - First quarter 2021/22  
 
The Interim Internal Audit Manager explained that the quarterly report picked up on the 
remaining work from 2021. Six reports were finalised with three at draft stage and they 
were the outstanding reports from the previous year. Three follow up reports were 
completed with some still required to be completed. It was added that three reports relating 
to proactive anti-fraud, council tax, and capital management, were given limited 
assurance. 

 
The Revenues and Benefits Client Manager explained that £80 million had been paid out 
for grants and test and trace payments, which had been a significantly heavy workload. 
The officer also explained that they had always previously reviewed exemptions discounts 
on an annual basis.   
 
RESOLVED: to note the interim internal audit manager’s report. 
 
 

Page 11

Agenda Item 2



 6 

77 Internal audit management report - First quarter 2021/22  
 
The Interim Internal Audit Manager’s report explained that the majority of the work in the 
first quarter 2021/2022 had been spent in agreeing the terms of reference and scopes for 
the planned audits. The team had also been involved in revising the working papers and 
work on reviewing and revising the recommendation database, which would be reported at 
the next meeting.  

 
RESOLVED: to note the interim internal audit manager’s report. 
 

78 Work programme  
 
The Democratic Services Team Leader introduced the work programme. The next meeting 
was on the 28th September with an additional report for the audit plan and possibly the 
treasury management monitoring report for 2020/21. It was added that in January 2022, 
the committee would receive the statement of accounts which were due for the 2020/21 
year, along with a six-monthly risk report and health and safety review. 

 
A question was raised on having a review of business grants paid, particularly during the 
Covid-19 pandemic, which had been requested by a number of councillors. It was agreed 
that Internal Audit would take this on, and it had been agreed to be brought as an audit 
review at a later meeting.  
 
RESOLVED: to note the committee’s work programme. 
 
 
The meeting closed at 7.50 pm 
 
 
 
 
 
Chairman Date 

 

 
 

Page 12

Agenda Item 2



 

 1 
 

Joint Audit and Governance 
Committee  

 

 
Report of Head of Finance 

Author: Emma Creed 

Telephone: 01235 422498 

Textphone: 18001 01235 422498 

E-mail: emma.creed@southandvale.gov.uk 

SODC cabinet member responsible for Finance:  Councillor Leigh Rawlins 
Telephone:  01189 722565 
Email:  leigh.rawlins@southoxon.gov.uk 
 
VWHDC cabinet member responsible for Finance:  Councillor Andrew Crawford 
Telephone:  01235 772134 
Email:  andy.crawford@whitehorsedc.gov.uk 
 

To: Joint Audit and Governance Committee, Cabinet and Council 

DATE: 28 September 2021 by Joint Audit and Governance Committee 

            30 September 2021 (S) / 1 October 2021 (V) by Cabinet 

            7 October 2021 (S) / 6 October 2021 (V) by Council 

  

 

Treasury Outturn 2020-21 
  
Recommendations 

That Joint Audit and Governance Committee: 

1.  notes the treasury management outturn report 2020/21,  

2.  is satisfied that the treasury activities are carried out in accordance with the 
treasury management strategy and policy, and 

3.  make any comments and recommendations to Cabinets as necessary.  

That Cabinet: 

Considers any comments from Joint Audit and Governance Committee and 
recommends Council to: 

1. approve the treasury management outturn report for 2020/21; 

2. approve the actual 2020/21 prudential indicators within the report. 

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



 

 2 
 

Purpose of report 

1. This report fulfils the legislative requirements to ensure the adequate monitoring 
and reporting of the treasury management activities and that the councils’ 
prudential indicators are reported to the councils at the end of the year.  The report 
provides details of the treasury activities for the financial year 2020/21. 

2. This complies with the requirements of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance 
and Accountancy (CIPFA’s) Code of Practice on Treasury Management. 

Strategic objectives 

3. Effective treasury management is required to help the councils meet their strategic 
objectives. 

 
Background 

4. The councils’ treasury activities are strictly regulated by legislation.  The CIPFA 
Prudential Code and CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice require a 
report to be provided to the councils at the end of the financial year.   

5. This report provides details on the treasury activity and performance for 2020/21 
against prudential indicators and benchmarks set for the year in the 2020/21 
Treasury Management Strategy (TMS), approved by each council in February 
2020.  Each council is required to approve this report. 

6. Link Asset Services are the councils’ retained treasury advisors.   

7. Between 1 August 2016 and 31 March 2020, the operational treasury management 
staff were outsourced to Capita.  The executive decision making function remained 
with the head of finance throughout this time.  On 1 April 2020, the treasury 
management function was brought back inhouse. 

8. There are three types of investment, the performance of which is covered in this 
report 

a. True treasury investments – these investments are primarily for generating 
interest for the councils. Examples of these are loans to banks or other local 
authorities. It also includes investments in property funds. 

b. Non-treasury loans – these are loans to third parties, which earn a return, 
but they do not fall under the strict definition of a treasury investment.   

c. Property investments - both councils have investment properties let on 
commercial basis. The primary purpose of holding these assets is for 
investment purposes and they are not part of regeneration schemes.      

9. The councils continue to invest with regard for security, liquidity and yield, in that 
order. 

Economic conditions and factors effecting investment returns 
during 2020/21 

Page 14

Agenda Item 6



 

 3 
 

10. UK bank base rates were held at 0.10 per cent.  Link Asset Services provide a 
regular forecast of interest rates and the latest forecast is reproduced in appendix 
A.  This forecast shows that base rates are expected to remain at 0.10 per cent for 
the foreseeable future.  

11. The TMS makes clear that investment priority is given to the security of principal in 
the first instance.  As a result, investments have only been made with 
counterparties of high credit quality and low risk. Since the global banking crisis 
and the downgrading of the credit ratings of many banks, it has become 
increasingly difficult to place money at competitive rates, as institutions with high 
credit ratings have been offering lower rates.  

12. Average treasury investment balances were higher for both councils than expected 
in the year.  This arose from a combination of accumulated revenue and capital 
surpluses/slippage and unbudgeted grant receipts. This was also the case in 
2019/20.   

13. Investments that have helped to keep yields up for both councils include longer 
term investments taken out when rates were higher, such as the CCLA property 
fund at both councils, and the unit trusts at South.  

14. Outlook for 2021/22 –interest rates are expected to remain at 0.10 per cent for the 
next eighteen months.  Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) members are hopeful 
we will see a good economic recovery post lockdown, however with unpredictable 
virus factors, forecasting is difficult and will be subject to revision. 

Summary of investment activities during 2020/21 

15. Prudential limits (security).  Both councils are required by the Prudential Code to 
report on the limits set each year in the TMS.  The purpose of these limits is to 
ensure that the activity of the treasury function remains within certain parameters, 
thereby mitigating risk and reducing the impact of an adverse movement in interest 
rates.  However, if these limits are set to be too restrictive, they may impair the 
opportunities to reduce costs/improve performance.  These limits are shown in 
appendix B. 

16. Yield - the performance of the two councils is summarised in the tables below.   

  

South Treasury 
investments 

£000 

Non 
treasury 

loan    
£000 

Sub 
Total 
£000 

Property 
investment 

£000 

Overall 
total 
£000 

1 Average investment balance 160,433  15,000  175,433  7,915  183,347  
2 Budgeted investment income 1,960  623  2,583     
3 Actual investment income 1,850  623  2,474 322 2,795 
4 Surplus/(deficit)  (3) - (2) (110) 0  (110)     

5 Rate of return  (3) ÷ (1) 1.15% 4.15% 1.41% 4.07% 1.52% 

 

 

 

Page 15

Agenda Item 6



 

 4 
 

  

Vale Treasury 
investments 

£000 

Property 
investment      

£000 

Overall total 
£000 

1 Average investment balance 119,755  5,684  125,439  
2 Budgeted investment income 908      
3 Actual investment income 1,072  238 1,310 
4 surplus/(deficit)  (3) - (2) 163      

5 Rate of return  (3) ÷ (1) 0.89% 4.19% 1.04% 
Note: £135,000 of treasury investment income relates to interest earned on Enterprise Zone balances 

17. Vale exceeded treasury budgeted investment income this year in terms of actual 
income against budget and rates of return against benchmark.  South did not reach 
the budgeted investment income.  This is because investments matured early in 
the year and were reinvested at lower rates. More detail on benchmarks is 
included in the appendices that follow this report.  

18. Detailed reports on the treasury activities for each council and performance for 
2020/21 against prudential indicators and benchmarks set for the year are 
contained in appendix C – South Oxfordshire DC and appendix D – Vale of White 
Horse DC.   

19. A detailed list of both councils’ treasury investments as at 31 March 2021 is shown 
at appendix E. 

Debt activity during 2020/21 

20. During 2020/21, there has not been a need for either council to borrow and both 
councils continue to take a prudent approach to their debt strategy.  The prudential 
indicators and limits set out in appendix B provide the scope and flexibility for the 
council to borrow in the short-term, if such a need arose, for cash flow purposes to 
support the council(s) in the achievement of their service objectives.   

Climate and ecological impact implications 

21. There are no climate or ecological implications arising from this report, however 
the Council can make significant impact via future investment opportunities and 
operational changes.  Numerous changes have already been made to ensure that 
climate is a key consideration in key documents and processes (such as the 
procurement strategy), and this will become more evident in future decision 
making.  As opportunities to support the climate ambitions of the Councils arise, 
they will be considered and appropriately weighted to include any climate or 
ecological impacts. 

Financial implications 

22. The treasury investments made in 2020/21 ensured over £2 million of actual 
investment income was achieved for South during the year and over £1 million for 
Vale.  Income earned from investments supports the councils’ medium term 
financial plans and contributes to the councils’ balances or supports the in-year 
expenditure programmes.    

23. Looking forward, income is anticipated to remain stable with any increase due to 
ongoing surplus cash balances and rises in market rates offset by a general 

Page 16

Agenda Item 6



 

 5 
 

reduction in the balances available to invest.  This will be reflected in the councils’ 
future budgets and medium term financial plans. 

Legal implications 

24. There are no significant legal implications.  Compliance with the CIPFA Code of 
Practice for Treasury Management in the Public Services and the MHCLG Local 
Government Investment Guidance provides assurance that the councils’ 
investments are, and will continue to be, within their legal powers. 

Conclusion 

25. Despite a difficult operating environment, both councils continued to make 
investments during 2020/21 that maintained security and liquidity whilst providing a 
return that mostly exceeded market benchmarks.     

Background papers 

 Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accounting (CIPFA) code of practice 
for treasury management in the public sector. 

 DCLG Local Government Investment Guidance 
 CIPFA treasury management in the public services code of practice and cross 

sectoral guidance notes 
 Treasury Management Strategy 2020/21 – Councils in February 2020. 

 
Appendices 

A. Interest rate forecasts 
B. Prudential limits  
C. SODC – Treasury activities 2020-2021 
D. VWHDC – Treasury activities 2020-2021  
E. Treasury investments as at 31 March 2021 
F. Glossary of terms 
          

Page 17

Agenda Item 6



  Appendix A 
Interest rate forecast as at May 2021  
 
The table below shows Link Asset Services’ forecast of the expected movement in 
medium term interest rates: 
 

  Sep 21 Dec 21 Mar 22 Jun 22 Sep 22 Dec 22 Mar 23 
BANK RATE 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 
3 m ave earnings 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 
6 m ave earnings 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.20 
12 m ave earnings 0.20 0.20 0.20 0.20 0.20 0.30 0.30 
             
5 yr PWLB 1.20 1.30 1.30 1.30 1.40 1.40 1.40 
10 yr PWLB 1.70 1.70 1.80 1.80 1.90 1.90 1.90 
25 yr PWLB 2.20 2.30 2.40 2.40 2.40 2.50 2.50 
50 yr PWLB 2.00 2.10 2.20 2.20 2.20 2.30 2.30 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 18

Agenda Item 6



  Appendix B 
Prudential limits (indicators) as at March 2021 

 
Prudential indicators as at 31 March 2021           
   Vale South 
        

   
Original 

estimate 
Actual 

position 
Original 

estimate 
Actual 

position 
   £m £m £m £m 
Authorised limit for external debt       
Borrowing  30 0 30 0 
Other long term liabilities  5 0 0 0 
   35 0 30 0 
        
Operational boundary for external debt       
Borrowing  25 0 25 0 
Other long term liabilities  5 0 0 0 

   30 0 25 0 
Investments       
Interest rate exposures       
Limits on fixed interest rates %  100% 98% 100% 87% 
Limits on variable interest rates £  50 14 50 9 
Maximum principal sums invested > 364 days      
Upper limit for principal sums invested > 364 days £ 40 15 70 7 
Limit to be placed on investments to maturity       

1 - 2 years  NA NA NA NA 
2 - 5 years  NA NA NA NA 
5 years +  NA NA NA NA 

            

 
 
 
Prudential indicators – explanatory note 
 
Debt 
 
There are two limits on external debt: the ‘Operational Boundary’ and the ‘Authorised 
Limit’.   Both are consistent with the current commitments, existing plans and the 
proposals in the budget report for capital expenditure and financing, and with approved 
treasury management policy statement and practices.  They are both based on 
estimates of most likely, but not worst case, scenario.   

The key difference is that the Authorised Limit cannot be breached without prior 
approval of the Council.  It therefore includes more headroom to take account of 
eventualities such as delays in generating capital receipts, forward borrowing to take 
advantage of attractive interest rates, use of borrowing in place of operational leasing, 
“invest to save” projects, occasional short term borrowing to cover temporary revenue 
cash flow shortfalls as well as an assessment of risks involved in managing cash flows.   

The Operational Boundary is a more realistic indicator of the likely position. 

 
Interest rate exposures 
 
The maximum proportion of interest on borrowing which is subject to fixed/variable rate 
of interest. 
 

Page 19

Agenda Item 6



  Appendix B 
 
Investments 
 
Interest rate exposure 
 
The purpose of these indicators is to set ranges that will limit exposure to interest rate 
movement. The indicator required by the Treasury Management Code considers the net 
position of borrowing and investment and is based on principal sums outstanding. 
 
Principal sums invested 
 
This indicator sets a limit on the level of investments that can be made for more than 
364 days. 

Page 20

Agenda Item 6



Appendix C 

 1 
 

          

SODC treasury activities in 2020/21 

Council treasury investments as at 31 March 2021 
 

1. The council’s treasury investments, analysed by age as at 31 March 2021 were as 
follows:  

Table 1: maturity structure of investments at 31 March 2021: 
        
  £000 % holding   
Call 509  0%   
Money market fund 8,690  5%   

Cash available within 1 week 9,199  6%   
Up to 4 months 56,000  34%     
5-6 months 17,000  10%   
6 months to 1 year 54,500  33%   
Over 1 year 7,000  4%   
Kaupthing Singer & Friedlander 222  0%   

Total cash deposits 143,921  87%   
CCLA Property Fund 6,468  4%   

Equities 12,775  8%   

Total investments 163,164  100%   
 

2. Most of the funds invested are held in the form of fixed interest rate and term cash 
deposits. These provide some certainty over the investment return.  

3. The investment profile is organised to ensure sufficient liquidity for revenue and 
capital activities, security of investments and to manage risks within all treasury 
management activities. 

4. The chart below shows in percentage terms how the portfolio above is spread 
across the investment types: 

 

 
 

Banks - UK Fixed 
Deposits
£26,000

16%

Building societies -
fixed deposits

£75,000
46%

Local Authorities
£18,500

12%

Housing Associations
£15,000

9%

Money Market Funds
£8,690

5%

CCLA
£6,468

4%

Unit Trusts
£12,775

8%

Banks - UK Call 
accounts

£509
0%

Portfolio analysis £000

Page 21

Agenda Item 6



Appendix C 

 2 
 

Treasury investment income  
 

5. The total income earned on investments during 2020/21 was £1.85 million, 
compared to the original budget of £1.96 million, as shown in table 2 below: 

Table 2:  Investment interest earned by investment type 
   
   Annual  Actual Variation 
Investment type  Budget Interest   
    £000 £000 £000 
       
Fixed term and call   1,205 1,253 48 
Equities  456 325 (131) 
CCLA property fund   299 272 (27) 

    1,960 1,850 (110) 

 
6. The actual return achieved was £0.1 million less than the original budget. This 

was due to: 

 Interest earned on cash deposits was £0.5 million higher than forecast 
principally due to balances available to invest being more than predicted in 
the 2020/21 budget setting.  

 Dividend received on equities was £131,000 less than forecast. The value of 
our equities holding tracks the FTSE.  When the coronavirus pandemic 
struck at the beginning of 2020 the FTSE fell sharply, but slowly increased as 
the situation became more stable. 
 

7. The actual average rate of return on treasury investments for the year was 1.15 
per cent (1.64 in 2019/20).  

Performance measurement 

8. A list of treasury investments as at 31 March 2021 is shown in appendix E.  All 
investments were with approved counterparties.  The average level of 
investments held was £170 million. Table 3 below shows in summary the 
performance of the council’s treasury investments against the benchmarks set out 
in the TMS.  These benchmarks are used to assess and monitor the council’s 
treasury investment performance for each type of investment. 

9. The £170 million does not represent the council’s usable, cash backed reserves, 
which at 31 March 2021 totalled £124 million.  The difference represents the 
council’s working capital balance and capital grants received in advance of spend.    

Table 3: Treasury investment returns achieved against benchmark   

    
Benchmark 

Return 
Actual 
Return 

Growth 
(Below)/above 

Benchmark Benchmarks 
        
Bank & Building Society 
deposits - internally managed  0.02% 0.83% 0.81% 3 Month LIBID 
Equities  23.29% 21.81% (1.48%) FTSE All Shares Index 
Property related investments 
(excluding SOHA loan)* 

 

2.46% 5.43% 2.97% IPD balanced property 
unit trust index 

            

Page 22

Agenda Item 6



Appendix C 

 3 
 

Note: the benchmark return for unit trusts and CCLA includes the movement in 
capital value.  All other benchmarks reflect earnings of treasury investment 
income.   
 

10. Returns on Bank and building society deposits (Call accounts, money market 
funds and fixed term deposits) are benchmarked against the three-month LIBID 
rate, which was an average of 0.02 per cent for 2020/21.  The performance for the 
year of 0.83 per cent exceeded the benchmark by 0.81 per cent.   

11. The Bank of England and the Governments introduced new programmes of 
supplying the banking system and the economy with massive amounts of cheap 
credit so banks could help cash starved business survive the lockdown.  The 
Government also supplied huge amounts of finance to local authorities to pass on 
to business.  This meant that for most of the year there was much more liquidity in 
financial markets than there was demand to borrow. With the consequent effect 
that investment earnings plummeted.   

12. Higher than anticipated investment balances as a result of the grants received 
from Government contributed to the increase in fixed term investment income 
during the year. 

13. The CCLA property fund principal investment of £5 million (March 2013) 
increased in value during 2020/21 to £6.5 million.  Dividends received in the year 
totalled £0.3 million. Both the capital appreciation and the interest earned are 
included in the performance of 5.43 per cent achieved above.  The capital gain is 
however not realised and so for comparison purposes, the actual rate of return is 
interest as a factor of market value of holding being 2.46 per cent.  

Equities  

14. The council’s holdings with the Legal & General (L&G) UK 100 Index Trust were 
purchased in 2000/01 at an initial cost of £10 million.  This is an authorised unit 
trust incorporated in the United Kingdom and regulated by the FSA.  The trust’s 
objective is to track the capital performance of the UK equity market as 
represented by the FTSE 100 index which represents 98-99 per cent of the UK 
market capitalisation. 

15. The index shows the performance of all eligible companies listed on the London 
Stock Exchange main market and today covers 641 constituents with a combined 
value of nearly £1.9 trillion.  It is recognised as the main benchmark for unit trusts.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 23

Agenda Item 6



Appendix C 

 4 
 

Table 4: Unit Trusts - Movement in capital     
    £ £ 
Market Value as at 31.3.21    12,774,985 
       
Less:      
Dividends received in year             455,635    
Accrued dividends             130,231    
            (585,866) 
       
Amended market value as at 31.3.21   12,189,119 
       
Market value as at 1.4.20    10,006,338 
       
Increase in Market Value in year     2,182,781 

 
 

16. The increase above is compared to the performance of the stock market as a 
whole using the benchmarking in table 5 below.  The fund’s under performance of 
1.48 per cent compared with the stock market equates to £147,411 in real terms.  

Table 5: Unit Trust performance   
      
Increase in FTSE all share was 23.29% 
     
Increase in Market Value  21.81% 
     
Under-performance  (1.48%) 
      
   £ 
Market value as at 1.4.20        10,006,338  
     
Adjusted for FTSE change            2,330,192  
     
Benchmark Market Value at 31.3.21       12,336,531  
     
Amended market value as at 31.3.21       12,189,119  
     

Under performance                (147,411)  

 

17. The performance of the fund over the past three years is summarised in table 5.1 
below. The justification for holding this investment is regularly reviewed. 

Table 5.1 Unit Trust past performance 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 
      
Performance against FTSE all share % 0.60% (1.57%) (1.47%) 
(Under)/Over     
Performance against FTSE all share £000            70,350           (193,172)       (147,411)  
(Under)/Over     
        

   

18. Dividends received of £0.3 million were reinvested to acquire additional fund 
units.  

Page 24

Agenda Item 6



Appendix C 

 5 
 

19. Officers monitor the performance of the unit trust holding on a regular basis.  
When the market value reaches £14 million, a disposal of £2 million is made. No 
disposal took place during 2020/21. 

  

Non-treasury investment loan 

20. During 2013/14, the council entered into a secured loan agreement with SOHA to 
enable them to finance affordable housing schemes.  The Council lent £15 million 
over 20 years at a fixed rate of 4.15 per cent.  Interest is paid quarterly and during 
2020/21, the council received £0.6 million.  

Land and property 

21. The Council holds a portfolio of investment properties, which includes land, 
depots, garages, and shops that are let on a commercial basis. These assets are 
valued on an annual basis and had average net book value of £7.9 million during 
2020/21 (£7.8 million at 31 March 2020).  Income generated was £0.32 million in 
2020/21 (£0.39 million in 2019/20) giving a gross rate of return of 4.07 per cent.   

22. Due to movement in property values and the exclusion of whole life costs, these 
rates of return should not be taken as a direct comparison with the treasury rates. 

Liquidity and yield 

23. The council uses short-term investments to meet daily cash-flow requirements 
and aims to invest a proportion of the portfolio over longer dated cash deposits 
where possible.   

24. The amount maintained for liquidity was £9 million.  

 
 

Page 25

Agenda Item 6



Appendix D 

 1 
 

VWHDC detailed treasury performance in 2020/21 

Council treasury investments as at 31 March 2021 
 
1. The council’s treasury investments analysed by age as at 31 March 2021 were as 

follows:  
 

Table 1: maturity structure of investments at 31 March 2020: 
        
        

  £000 % holding   
Call 0  0%   
Money market fund 14,220  12%   
Cash available within 1 week 14,220  12%   
Up to 4 months 17,000  15%     
5-6 months 14,000  12%   
6 months to 1 year 52,000  45%   
Over 1 year 15,000  13%   
      
Total cash deposits 112,220  98%   
      

CCLA Property Fund 2,587  2%   
      

Total investments 114,807  100%   
 
 
2. Most of the funds invested are held in the form of fixed interest rate and term cash 

deposits. These provide some certainty over the investment return.   

3. The investment profile is organised to ensure sufficient liquidity for revenue and 
capital activities, security of investments and to manage risks within all treasury 
management activities. 

4. The chart below shows in percentage terms how the portfolio above is spread 
across investment types: 

 

Banks - UK fixed 
deposits £20,000 18%

Building societies -
fixed deposits £45,000

39%
Local authorities

£8,000 7%

Housing Associations
£25,000

22%

Money Market Funds
£14,220 12%

CCLA £2,587 2%

Portfolio Analysis (£000)

Page 26

Agenda Item 6



Appendix D 

 2 
 

 

Treasury investment income 

5. The total interest earned on treasury investments during 2020/21 was £1.1 million 
compared to the original budget estimate of £0.9 million as shown in table 2 below: 

Table 2: Investment interest earned by investment type   
     

   Annual  Actual Variation 

Investment type  Budget Interest   

   £000 £000 £000 

Fixed term and call                 822  956                 134  

CCLA Property Fund                 87  115                     28  

Total Interest   909  1,071  162  
Note: £135,000 of treasury investment income relates to interest earned on Enterprise Zone balances 

 
6. The actual return achieved was £0.2 million higher than the original budget. This 

was primarily due to average balances throughout the year remaining higher than 
forecast.  

7. The total actual average interest rate achieved for the year was 0.89 per cent. 
 

Performance measurement 

8. A list of treasury investments as at 31 March 2021 is shown in appendix E. All 
investments were with approved counterparties. The average level of investments 
held was £112 million.  At 31 March 2021 the council’s usable, cash backed 
reserves totalled around £40 million.  The difference represents working capital 
and capital grants received in advance. Table 3 below shows in summary the 
performance of the council’s treasury investments against the benchmarks set out 
in the TMS. These benchmarks are used to assess and monitor the council’s 
treasury investment performance for each type of investment. 

Table 3: Treasury investment returns achieved against benchmark 
  Benchmark 

return 
Actual 
return 

Growth 
(below)/above 

Benchmark 

Benchmarks 

Internally managed - Bank & 
Building Society deposits 

0.02% 0.82% 0.80% 3 month LIBID 

Property related funds (CCLA)* 2.46% 5.43% 2.97% 

IPD balanced 
property unit trust 

index 

 *Source: CCLA Local Authorities Property Fund Report March 2021 

9. Returns on bank and building society deposits (internally managed cash deposits) 
are benchmarked against the 3-month LIBID rate, which was an average of 0.02 
per cent for 2020/21.  The performance for the year of 0.82 per cent exceeded the 
benchmark by 0.80 per cent.  

10. The Bank of England and the Governments introduced new programmes of 
supplying the banking system and the economy with massive amounts of cheap 

Page 27

Agenda Item 6



Appendix D 

 3 
 

credit so banks could help cash starved business survive the lockdown.  The 
Government also supplied huge amounts of finance to local authorities to pass on 
to business.  This meant that for most of the year there was much more liquidity in 
financial markets than there was demand to borrow. With the consequent effect 
that investment earnings plummeted.  

11. Higher than anticipated investment balances as a result of the grants received from 
Government contributed to the increase in fixed term investment income during the 
year. 

12. The CCLA property fund principal investment of £2 million (April 2013) increased in 
value during 2020/21 to £2.6 million.  Dividends received in the year totalled £0.1 
million. Both the capital appreciation and the interest earned are included in the 
performance of 5.43 per cent achieved above.  The capital gain is however not 
realised and so for comparison purposes, the actual rate of return is interest as a 
factor of market value of holding being 2.46 per cent.  

Land and Property 

13. The council holds a portfolio of investment properties, which includes land, offices 
and shops that are let on a commercial basis.  These assets are valued on an 
annual basis and had an average net book value of £5.7 million during 2020/21 
(£5.9 million as at 31 March 2020).  Income generated was £0.2 million (£0.2 
million in 2019/20).  This is equivalent to a gross return of 4.19 per cent. 

14. Due to movement in property values and the exclusion of whole life costs, these 
rates of return should not be taken as a direct comparison with the treasury rates. 

Liquidity and yield 
 
15. The council uses short-term investments to meet daily cash-flow requirements and 

has also aims to invest a proportion of the portfolio over longer dated cash 
deposits where possible.   
 

16. The amount maintained for liquidity was £14 million. 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Page 28

Agenda Item 6



  Appendix E 

 

South Oxfordshire District Council investments (excluding KSF) as at 31 March 2021

Counterparty Deposit Type Maturity Principal Rate
Date

Coventry CC Fixed Apr-21 5,000,000 0.95%
Wokingham BC Fixed Apr-21 5,000,000 1.90%
National Counties Building Society Fixed Apr-21 2,500,000 1.18%
Close Brothers Fixed Apr-21 2,000,000 1.00%
Royal Bank of Scotland Fixed Apr-21 3,000,000 1.75%
Close Brothers Fixed Apr-21 2,000,000 1.00%
METROPOLITAN HOUSING TRUST LTD Fixed Apr-21 3,000,000 1.70%
Royal Bank of Scotland Fixed Apr-21 3,000,000 1.78%
National Counties Building Society Fixed Apr-21 1,000,000 1.16%
Places for People Fixed May-21 2,000,000 1.70%
National Counties Building Society Fixed Jun-21 2,000,000 0.57%
Places for People Fixed Jun-21 3,000,000 1.70%
West Bromwich Building Society Fixed Jul-21 4,000,000 0.50%
Principality Building Society Fixed Jul-21 4,000,000 0.38%
West Bromwich Building Society Fixed Jul-21 2,000,000 0.50%
Monmouthshire Building Society Fixed Jul-21 1,000,000 0.40%
Progressive Building Society Fixed Jul-21 2,500,000 0.42%
Monmouthshire Building Society Fixed Jul-21 2,000,000 0.37%
Bury MBC Fixed Jul-21 5,000,000 1.50%
Lloyds Bank Fixed Jul-21 2,000,000 1.30%
Furness Building Society Fixed Aug-21 2,000,000 0.45%
Newcastle Building Society Fixed Aug-21 2,000,000 0.40%
Newcastle Building Society Fixed Aug-21 2,000,000 0.40%
Furness Building Society Fixed Sep-21 2,000,000 0.45%
Skipton Building Society Fixed Sep-21 2,000,000 0.30%
Skipton Building Society Fixed Sep-21 2,000,000 0.30%
Monmouthshire Building Society Fixed Sep-21 3,000,000 0.35%
Furness Building Society Fixed Sep-21 2,000,000 0.45%
Skipton Building Society Fixed Oct-21 2,000,000 0.30%
Cambridge BS Fixed Oct-21 3,000,000 0.40%
Progressive Building Society Fixed Oct-21 1,000,000 0.42%
Cambridge BS Fixed Oct-21 2,000,000 0.42%
Progressive Building Society Fixed Oct-21 2,000,000 0.42%
Saffron Building Society Fixed Nov-21 1,000,000 0.40%
Saffron Building Society Fixed Nov-21 1,000,000 0.40%
National Counties Building Society Fixed Nov-21 3,000,000 0.45%
Furness Building Society Fixed Nov-21 3,000,000 0.55%
Close Brothers Fixed Nov-21 3,000,000 1.30%
Saffron Building Society Fixed Dec-21 3,000,000 0.40%
METROPOLITAN HOUSING TRUST LTD Fixed Jan-22 2,000,000 0.30%
West Bromwich Building Society Fixed Jan-22 2,000,000 0.33%
Thurrock BC Fixed Jan-22 3,500,000 0.20%
Goldman Sachs International Bank Fixed Feb-22 5,000,000 0.28%
West Bromwich Building Society Fixed Feb-22 3,000,000 0.20%
Newcastle Building Society Fixed Feb-22 3,000,000 0.20%
Goldman Sachs International Bank Fixed Feb-22 2,000,000 0.30%
Newcastle Building Society Fixed Mar-22 4,000,000 0.20%
West Bromwich Building Society Fixed Mar-22 2,000,000 0.20%
Principality Building Society Fixed Mar-22 2,000,000 0.14%
Goldman Sachs International Bank Fixed Mar-22 2,000,000 0.39%
Royal Bank of Scotland Fixed Feb-23 2,000,000 2.46%
Places for People Fixed Mar-23 5,000,000 1.00%

Santander Call 409,797 0.08%
Royal Bank of Scotland Call 2,361 0.01%
Royal Bank of Scotland Call 96,489 0.01%
Goldman Sachs MMF 8,000,000 Variable
Blackrock MMF 690,000 Variable
L&G Equities Unit trust 12,774,985 Variable
CCLA - property fund Property fund 5,000,000 2.46%

GRAND TOTAL 161,473,633 Page 29

Agenda Item 6



  Appendix E 

 
 
Note – these do not reconcile to table 1 figures seen in appendix c and d as these are 
original investment levels whereas the values in table 1 are the fair values of 
investments held. 

Vale of White Horse District Council investments as at 31 March 2021
Counterparty Deposit Type Maturity Principal Rate

Date
Metropolitan Housing Trust Ltd Fixed Apr-21 2,000,000 1.70%
Metropolitan Housing Trust Ltd Fixed Apr-21 2,000,000 0.20%
Places For People Homes Ltd Fixed Jun-21 2,000,000 1.70%
Furness Building Society Fixed Jun-21 3,000,000 0.65%
National Counties Building Society Fixed Jun-21 1,000,000 0.55%
Progressive Building Society Fixed Jun-21 3,000,000 0.55%
Metropolitan Housing Trust Ltd Fixed Jun-21 2,000,000 1.70%
National Counties Building Society Fixed Jul-21 1,000,000 0.55%
Metropolitan Housing Trust Ltd Fixed Jul-21 1,000,000 1.60%
National Counties Building Society Fixed Aug-21 3,000,000 0.41%
Cambridge Building Society Fixed Aug-21 1,000,000 0.43%
National Counties Building Society Fixed Sep-21 1,000,000 0.45%
Monmouthshire Building Society Fixed Sep-21 1,000,000 0.35%
Principality Building Society Fixed Sep-21 3,000,000 0.22%
Skipton Building Society Fixed Sep-21 3,000,000 0.30%
Close Brothers Ltd Fixed Sep-21 2,000,000 1.30%
Cambridge Building Society Fixed Oct-21 2,000,000 0.40%
Saffron Building society Fixed Oct-21 3,000,000 0.40%
Places for People Homes Ltd Fixed Oct-21 1,000,000 1.70%
Furness Building Society Fixed Oct-21 3,000,000 0.55%
Close Brothers Ltd Fixed Nov-21 2,000,000 1.30%
Worthing Borough Council Fixed Nov-21 3,000,000 1.30%
Monmouthshire Building Society Fixed Nov-21 1,500,000 0.45%
West Bromwich Building Society Fixed Nov-21 2,500,000 0.34%
Monmouthshire Building Society Fixed Dec-21 1,500,000 0.45%
Principality Building Society Fixed Dec-21 2,000,000 0.19%
Progressive Building Society Fixed Jan-22 3,000,000 0.30%
Fife Council Fixed Jan-22 5,000,000 0.20%
Close Brothers Ltd Fixed Jan-22 4,000,000 1.30%
Goldman Sachs International Bank Fixed Jan-22 5,000,000 0.18%
Newcastle Building Society Fixed Feb-22 1,500,000 0.20%
Goldman Sachs International Bank Fixed Feb-22 3,000,000 0.30%
Places For People Homes Ltd Fixed Feb-22 2,000,000 1.80%
Newcastle Building Society Fixed Feb-22 2,000,000 0.20%
Close Brothers Ltd Fixed Mar-22 2,000,000 1.30%
West Bromwich Building Society Fixed Mar-22 3,000,000 0.20%
Places For People Homes Ltd Fixed Jun-22 5,000,000 0.75%
Metropolitan Housing Trust Ltd Fixed Nov-22 3,000,000 1.10%
Goldman Sachs International Bank Fixed Mar-23 2,000,000 0.37%
Southern Housing Group Fixed Mar-23 5,000,000 1.00%

Goldman Sachs MMF 14,000,000 Variable
LGIM MMF 220,000 Variable
CCLA Property fund 2,000,000 2.46%

GRAND TOTAL 114,220,000

Page 30

Agenda Item 6



  Appendix F 
 
GLOSSARY OF TERMS 
 
Basis point (BP) 1/100th of 1%, i.e. 0.01% 

Base rate Minimum lending rate of a bank or financial institution in the UK. 

Benchmark A measure against which the investment policy or performance 
of a fund manager can be compared. 

Bill of Exchange A non-interest-bearing written order used primarily in 
international trade that binds one party to pay a fixed sum of 
money to another party at a predetermined future date.  

Callable Deposit A deposit placed with a bank or building society at a set rate for a 
set amount of time.  However, the borrower has the right to repay 
the funds on pre agreed dates, before maturity.  This decision is 
based on how market rates have moved since the deal was 
agreed.  If rates have fallen the likelihood of the deposit being 
repaid rises, as cheaper money can be found by the borrower. 

[Cash] Fund 
Management 

Fund management is the management of an investment portfolio 
of cash on behalf of a private client or an institution, the receipts 
and distribution of dividends and interest, and all other 
administrative work in connection with the portfolio. 

Certificate of 
Deposit (CD) 

Evidence of a deposit with a specified bank or building society 
repayable on a fixed date.  They are negotiable instruments and 
have a secondary market; therefore the holder of a CD is able to 
sell it to a third party before the maturity of the CD. 

Commercial 
Paper 

Short-term obligations with maturities ranging from 2 to 270 days 
issued by banks, corporations and other borrowers.  Such 
instruments are unsecured and usually discounted, although 
some may be interest bearing. 

Corporate Bond Strictly speaking, corporate bonds are those issued by 
companies.  However, the term is used to cover all bonds other 
than those issued by governments in their own currencies and 
includes issues by companies, supranational organisations and 
government agencies. 

Counterparty Another (or the other) party to an agreement or other market 
contract (e.g. lender/borrower/writer of a swap/etc.) 

Credit Default 
Swap (CDS) 

A swap designed to transfer the credit exposure of fixed income 
products between parties.  The buyer of a credit swap receives 
credit protection, whereas the seller of the swap guarantees the 
credit worthiness of the product.  By doing this, the risk of default 
is transferred from the holder of the fixed income security to the 
seller of the swap. 

Page 31

Agenda Item 6



  Appendix F 
Capital 
Financing 
Requirement 
(CFR) 

The amount the council has to borrow to fund its capital 
commitments. 

CIPFA Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy. 

CLG [Department for] Communities and Local Government. 

Derivative A contract whose value is based on the performance of an 
underlying financial asset, index or other investment, e.g. an 
option is a derivative because its value changes in relation to the 
performance of an underlying stock. 

Debt 
Management 
Account Deposit 
Facility (DMADF) 

Deposit Account offered by the Debt Management Office, 
guaranteed by the UK government 

European 
Central Bank 
(ECB) 

European Central Bank – sets the central interest rates in the 
EMU area.  The ECB determines the targets itself for its interest 
rate setting policy; this is the keep inflation within a band of 0 to 
2%.  It does not accept that monetary policy is to be used to 
manage fluctuations in unemployment and growth caused by the 
business cycle. 

European and 
Monetary Union 
(EMU) 

The Economic and Monetary Union (EMU) is an umbrella 
term for the group of policies aimed at converging the economies 
of all member states of the European Union. 

Equity A share in a company with limited liability.  It generally enables 
the holder to share in the profitability of the company through 
dividend payments and capital appreciation.  Equity values can 
decrease as well as increase. 

Forward Deal The act of agreeing today to deposit funds with an institution for 
an agreed time limit, on an agreed future date, at an agreed rate. 

Forward 
Deposits 

Same as forward dealing (above). 

Fiscal Policy The government policy on taxation and welfare payments. 

GDP Gross Domestic Product. 

[UK] Gilt Registered UK government securities giving the investor an 
absolute commitment from the government to honour the debt 
that those securities represent. 

LIBID London inter-bank bid rate (to be phased out in December 2021) 

LIBOR London inter-bank offered rate (to be phased out in December 
2021)  

Page 32

Agenda Item 6



  Appendix F 
Money Market 
Fund 

A well rated, highly diversified pooled investment vehicle whose 
assets mainly comprise of short-term instruments.  It is very 
similar to a unit trust, however in a MMF. 

Monetary Policy 
Committee 
(MPC) 

Government body that sets the bank rate (commonly referred to 
as being base rate).  Their primary target is to keep inflation 
within plus or minus 1% of a central target of 2% in two years 
time from the date of the monthly meeting of the committee.  
Their secondary target is to support the government in 
maintaining high and stable levels of growth and employment. 

Other Bond 
Funds 

Pooled funds investing in a wide range of bonds. 

PWLB Public Works Loan Board. 

QE Quantitative Easing. 

Retail Price 
Index 

Measurement of the monthly change in the average level of 
prices at the retail level weighted by the average expenditure 
pattern of the average person. 

Sovereign Issues 
(excl UK Gilts) 

Bonds issued or guaranteed by nation states, but excluding UK 
government bonds. 

Supranational 
Bonds 

Bonds issued by supranational bodies, e.g. European Investment 
Bank.  The bonds – also known as Multilateral Development 
Bank bonds – are generally AAA rated and behave similarly to 
gilts, but pay a higher yield (“spread”) given their relative 
illiquidity when compared with gilts. 

Treasury Bill Treasury bills are short-term debt instruments issued by the UK 
or other governments.  They provide a return to the investor by 
virtue of being issued at a discount to their final redemption 
value. 

 

Page 33

Agenda Item 6



 

Joint Audit and Governance 

Committee  

 
Report of Interim Internal Audit Manager 

Author: Richard Green 

Telephone: 01235 422430 

Textphone: 18001 01235 422430 

E-mail: Richard.green@southandvale.gov.uk 

SODC cabinet member responsible: Councillor Leigh Rawlins 

Tel: 01189 722565 

E-mail: leigh.rawlins@southoxon.gov.uk 

VWHDC cabinet member responsible: Councillor Andy Crawford 

Telephone: 01235 772134 

E-mail: andy.crawford@whitehorsedc.gov.uk 

 

To: Joint Audit and Governance Committee 

DATE: 28 September 2021 

 

Internal audit activity report quarter two 

2021/22  

 

Recommendations 
 
(a)  That members note the content of the report 
 

 
Purpose of report  
 
1. The purpose of this report is to summarise the outcomes of recent internal audit activity 

at both councils for the committee to consider. 
The committee is asked to review the report and the main issues arising and seek 
assurance that action will be/has been taken where necessary.  

2. The contact officer for this report is Richard Green Interim Internal Audit Manager for 
South Oxfordshire District Council (SODC) and Vale of White Horse District Council 
(VWHDC), telephone 07849 574860. 

 

Page 34

Agenda Item 7

mailto:Richard.green@southandvale.gov.uk


Strategic objectives 
  
3. Delivery of an effective internal audit function will support the councils in meeting their 

strategic objectives. 
 
Background  
 
4. Internal audit is an independent assurance function that primarily provides an objective 

opinion on the degree to which the internal control environment supports and promotes 
the achievements of the council’s objectives.  It assists the councils by evaluating the 
adequacy of governance, risk management, controls and use of resources through its 
planned audit work and recommending improvements where necessary.  After each audit 
assignment, internal audit has a duty to report to management its findings on the control 
environment and risk exposure and recommend changes for improvements where 
applicable.  Managers are responsible for considering audit reports and taking the 
appropriate action to address control weaknesses.  

 
5. Assurance ratings given by internal audit indicate the following: 

Full assurance: There is a good system of internal control designed to meet the system 
objectives and the controls are being consistently applied.  
 
Substantial assurance: There is a sound system of internal control designed to meet 
the system objectives and the controls are being applied. 
 
Satisfactory assurance: There is basically a sound system of internal control although 
there are some minor weaknesses and/or there is evidence that the level of non-
compliance may put some minor system objectives at risk. 
 
Limited assurance: There are some weaknesses in the adequacy of the internal control 
system which put the system objectives at risk and/or the level of non-compliance puts 
some of the system objectives at risk. 
 
Nil assurance: Control is weak leaving the system open to significant error or abuse 
and/or there is significant non-compliance with basic controls. 
 
 

6. Each recommendation is given one of the following risk ratings: 

High Risk: Fundamental control weakness for senior management action 

Medium Risk: Other control weakness for local management action 

Low Risk: Recommended best practice to improve overall control 
 

 
Completed audit reports 
 
7. As at 17 September and since the last joint audit and governance committee meeting the 

following two audits and one follow up reviews have been completed: 
 

8. A review of the recommendation database has also been undertaken and is included as 
an Appendix. 
 

 

Page 35

Agenda Item 7



Audit Area 
Assurance 
Rating T

o
ta

l 
R

e
c

s
 

H
ig

h
 R

is
k

  

N
o

. 
A

g
re

e
d

 

M
e

d
iu

m
 R

is
k
 

N
o

. 
A

g
re

e
d

 

L
o

w
 R

is
k
 

N
o

. 
A

g
re

e
d

 

Audit Plan 2020/21 

Joint 

1. Housing Benefit & 
Council Tax Reduction 

Limited* 4 1 1 2 2 1 1 

2. Payroll Limited 14 3 3 8 8 3 3 

3. Covid 19 Response Substantial        

SODC  

None         

VWHDC 

None         

* As these audits have findings relating to services provided by Capita, the interim internal audit 
manager will take away any questions the committee may have for Capita and will obtain 
responses in due course. 

 
 
Follow Up Reviews 

Audit Area 

Initial 
Assurance 
Given N

o
. 

o
f 

R
e
c

s
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 

P
a
rt

ly
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 

N
o

t 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 

O
n

g
o

in
g

 

N
o

 l
o

n
g

e
r 

a
p

p
li
c
a
b

le
 

Joint 

HR Management & Reporting Satisfactory 12 3 9    

        

SODC 

None        

VWHDC 

Moorings Limited 8 2 2  4  

 
9. Appendix 1 of this report sets out the key points and findings relating to the completed 

audits which have received limited or nil assurance, and satisfactory or full assurance 
reports which members have asked to be presented to committee.  

 
10. Members of the committee are asked to seek assurance from the internal audit reports 

and/or respective managers that the agreed actions have been or will be undertaken 
where necessary.   
 

11. A copy of each report has been sent to the appropriate service manager, the section 151 
officer and the relevant member portfolio holder.  In addition, reports are now published 
on the councils’ intranet and limited assurance reports are reviewed by the strategic 
management team. 

12. Internal audit continues to carry out a six month follow up on all non-key financial audits 
to establish the implementation status of agreed recommendations.   All key financial 
system recommendations are followed up as part of the annual assurance cycle. Page 36

Agenda Item 7



 
Financial implications 
 
13. There are no financial implications attached to this report. 
 
Legal implications 
 
14. There are no legal implications attached to this report one. 
 
Climate & ecological implications 
 
15. There are no climate or environmental implications. 
 
Risks 
 
16. Identification of risk is an integral part of all audits. 

 
 
 
 
 

Richard Green 
INTERIM INTERNAL AUDIT MANAGER 

 

Page 37

Agenda Item 7



  
APPENDIX 1 a 

 

Housing Benefits and Council Tax Reduction Schemes 

2020/2021 

 
MANAGEMENT SUMMARY 

 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 This report details the internal audit review of procedures, controls and the 

management of risk in relation to housing benefits (HB) and council tax 
reduction scheme (CTRS).  The audit has been undertaken in accordance 
with the 2020//2021 audit plan agreed with the audit and governance 
committee of South Oxfordshire District Council (SODC) and Vale of White 
Horse District Council (VWHDC).  The audit has a priority score of 20.  The 
audit approach is provided in the audit framework in Appendix 1. 
 

1.2 The following areas have been covered during the course of this review to 
provide assurance that: 
 

• the administration of benefits is up to date, including guidance, 
procedures and training for officers carrying out assessments, so the 
process runs smoothly; 

• benefits assessments are correctly calculated, promptly undertaken 
and adequate quality checks take place; 

• payments of housing benefits and CTRS are managed appropriately 
with suitable supporting documentation; 

• there is a suitable mechanism to identify and recover benefit 
overpayments; 

• there is an adequate audit trail to substantiate the figures on the 
housing benefits subsidy claim, the claim is properly completed, and 
the figures included are accurate; 

• processes are in place to prevent and detect fraud and for fraud 
referrals to the Department of Work and Pensions (DWP); and 

• performance is appropriately recorded, monitored and reported. 
 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 Housing benefits and CTRS are means tested schemes to help those on low 

income pay their rent and/or council tax.  The DWP set the rules for the 
housing benefits calculations which is dependent upon income and prescribed 
needs allowances.  CTRS is the councils’ own scheme that utilises the same 
rules as for housing benefits.  The DWP has been introducing Universal 
Credit to replace housing benefits and other state benefits with a single 
payment, at SODC and VWHDC since 2015.  
 

2.2 Capita continues to provide the HB and CTRS service for the councils and, 
since 1 August 2016 this is delivered within the 5 Councils Partnership (5CP).   
A client team was in place providing HB and CTRS oversight for all of the 
5CP councils at the outset of the 5CP contract.  During November 2018, this 
was scaled down and resources returned to the council to retain oversight 
and perform functions that cannot be outsourced, such as 10% checks on 
assessments.  The councils’ now have an in-house revenues and benefits 
team and, as far as the 5CP contract overall, there is still oversight managed 

Page 38

Agenda Item 7



through the Client Relationship Director.  The councils’ representative for 
issues affecting all councils in the contract is the Head of Partnerships and 
Insight. 
 

2.3 Housing benefits and CTRS is managed through the Capita ONE revenues 
and benefits system. As at March 2021 the cases were: 
 

 SODC VWHDC 

Housing benefits 3,010 3,009 

CTRS 5,159 5,212 

Net (some claims are for both housing 
benefits and CTS) 

8,169 5, 221 

 

 
3. PREVIOUS AUDIT REPORTS 
 
3.1 Housing benefits and CTRS was last subject to an internal audit review in 

March 2020 with the final report being issued in July 2020. Three 
recommendations were raised.  All three recommendations were agreed.  A 
limited assurance opinion was issued.  
 

3.2 None of the three recommendations have been implemented. They are all 
restated as part of this review (Recs 1, 2 and 3). 
 

4. 2020/2021 AUDIT ASSURANCE 
 
4.1 Limited assurance: There are some weaknesses in the adequacy of the 

internal control system which put the system objectives at risk and/or the level 
of non-compliance puts some of the system objectives at risk. 
 

4.2 One recommendation has been raised and three previous recommendations 
have been restated in this review.  One high risk, two medium risk and one 
low risk. 
 

 

Page 39

Agenda Item 7



5. MAIN FINDINGS 
 
5.1 Procedures 

 
5.1.1 Capita maintain a comprehensive set of 32 training manuals, which also act 

as procedures.  The training manuals describe how to use the Capita ONE 
revenues and benefits system to process housing benefits and CTRS claims.  
Capita has a training programme ranging from full new starter training, an 
eight-week course provided by APT, to ongoing annual refresher training 
provided through Workday. In addition, for 2020/2021, all staff have received 
social distancing training. The five Councils Partnership (5CP) contract 
specification also sets out service delivery requirements including 
performance indicators. 

 
5.1.2 The councils’ revenues and benefits team maintain oversight of housing 

benefits and CTS service delivery, perform statutory checks and manage 
discretionary housing payments (DHP).  It is noted that the DHP is an award 
to people in receipt of HB or the housing element of Universal Credit to help 
with housing costs where extra financial assistance is needed.  The 
government allocates an annual allocation and sets a maximum that can be 
spent. The council’s revenues and benefits team have procedures in place. 
 

5.1.3 An online housing benefits and CTRS application form is made available 
through each council’s website in addition to a PDF version of the application 
form.  Claimants can apply for HB through DWP but that will not be a claim for 
CTRS.  Therefore, claimants are asked to sign a single page stating their 
intention to claim CTRS as well as HB.  It was noted that there is no reference 
to privacy notices or other data protection information on either the housing 
benefits/CTRS or DHP application or the councils’ webpages. 
 

5.1.4 Applicants are now encouraged, under Covid-19, to either email their 
sensitive documents to the council or to post them in.   
 

5.1.5 Area assurance: Substantial 
One recommendation has been restated as a result of our work in this area. 
(Rec 1).  
 

5.2 Benefit assessments 
 

5.2.1 
All housing benefits and/or CTRS applicants are required to complete an 
application form and provide supporting evidence attached to help prove 
identity and financial status (see 5.1.3).  This information is assessed and 
input onto the Capita ONE revenues and benefits system by Capita’s benefits 
assessors’ teams.  Once the required financial information is entered onto the 
Capita ONE revenues and benefits system, it automatically calculates the 
housing and CTRS for approved claimants.  The calculation of benefits 
depends upon specific values (benefits parameters) which are set by various 
government bodies. These are manually input and saved into the benefits 
system by Capita. The revenues and benefits team then check and sign off 
Capita input as being correct. The parameters are then used in benefit 
calculations, e.g. personal allowances for those aged 18-25.  Internal audit 
selected a sample of 20 housing benefits uprating’s from the signed off 
housing benefits parameters and review against the DWP housing benefits 
circular confirmed that the parameters had been correctly uploaded onto the 
Capita ONE revenues and benefits system for both SODC and VWHDC. 
Internal audit also selected a sample of 15 benefit ratings from the signed off Page 40

Agenda Item 7



council tax scheme parameters and review against the DWP increases 
circular confirmed that they had all been correctly uploaded.  

 

5.2.2 In 2020/2021 to date (September 2020), there were 1,802 (935 SODC and 
867 VWHDC) new housing benefits and/or council tax reduction scheme 
(CTRS) claims.  A sample of 40 (20 SODC and 20 VWHDC) new housing 
benefit claims and CTRS claims were selected to ensure that the 
assessments were undertaken in line with the relevant guidelines.  For both 
councils, ten of the claims were selected on the basis of financial volume and 
the remained term were selected randomly. Review confirmed that all claim 
forms were signed accordingly by the claimant, adequate supporting 
documentation was submitted to support the claim, and, Capita assessed and 
responded to all claimants within 14 days of receiving all supporting 
documentation. 
 

5.2.3 Each day Capita provide the revenues and benefits team with a report 
detailing the assessments which have been undertaken. Capita also 
undertake a random 10% check of the benefit assessments. This is reported 
to the revenues and benefits team on a monthly basis and details the 
percentage accuracy of benefit assessments. Review for one week in October 
2020 identified that the 10% check had been undertaken. However, the 
revenues and benefits team no longer receive a breakdown of the reasons for 
the inaccuracies. 
 

5.2.4 The revenues and benefits team undertake at least a 10% weekly quality 
check of capita benefit assessments. Review for one week in October 2020 
identified that at least 10% had been checked and had been adequately 
recorded and signed off. 
  

5.2.5 Area assurance: Substantial 
One recommendation has been made as a result of our work in this area (Rec 
4). 
  

5.3 Housing benefits and CTRS payments 
 

5.3.1 Payments of HB and CTRS are made via BACS or cheque at varying 
frequencies (e.g. fortnightly, four weekly or monthly) depending on the 
claimant.  Payment runs are undertaken on a weekly basis and review of two 
(one SODC and one VWHDC) payment runs confirmed that there is adequate 
segregation of duties in place, as Capita process the payments and the 
councils’ revenues and benefits team review and authorise the payment runs. 
 

5.3.2 A review of the returned cheques process identified that a stop is placed 
when the cheque is not physically held and marked as void.  Payments are 
re-issued where necessary once the stop has been confirmed by the bank.  
Internal audit is satisfied that all returned, and replacement cheques are dealt 
with appropriately with a satisfactory audit trail retained in the respective 
SODC and VWHDC benefits systems. 
  

5.3.3 Area assurance: Substantial 
No recommendations have been made as a result of our work in this area. 
 

5.4 Benefits overpayment recovery 
 

5.4.1 Overpayments may occur in cases where changes of circumstances that 
affect the previously awarded payments are not declared to the council in a Page 41

Agenda Item 7



timely manner by the claimant.  At the time of the audit review (September 
2020), there were 4,193 (1,987 SODC and 2,206 VWHDC) outstanding 
overpayment invoices.  A sample of 40 (20 SODC and 20 VWHDC) 
overpayment invoices was selected to ensure recovery action had progressed 
in accordance with the timescales set out in the corporate debt recovery 
strategy (CDRS) and the benefits overpayment guide.  The sample covered 
unpaid invoices from 2012 to 2020. For both council’s ten were selected on 
the basis of financial volume and the remaining ten were selected randomly. It 
is noted that recovery action was ceased in March 2020 due to the pandemic. 
Review found that 26 (11 SODC and 15 VWHDC) invoices had not had 
recovery action taken in accordance with the councils’ corporate debt 
recovery strategy and the benefits overpayment guide. Reasons for this 
included: 

• Letters being issued late; 

• Letters not being issued at all; 

• Delay in progressing actions; 

• Delay in sending the debt to legal for recovery; 

• Delays in recommencing debt recovery following the outcome of an appeal; 

• Delay between the customer agreement and the termination letter. 
 

5.4.2 Furthermore, in eight of the 26 tests, warning letters were issued for customer 
agreements covering more than one invoice. Separate warning letters were 
sent out for each invoice rather than just one covering / detailing all the 
invoices covered in the customer agreement. This could be unhelpful and 
confusing for the customer. 

 
 

5.4.3 Of the 40 overpayment invoices selected, one (SODC) was referred to the 
legal team for possible prosecution action.  Review confirmed that appropriate 
and timely legal action had been taken to try and recoup the outstanding 
overpayment debt. 
 

5.4.4 Not all debts are recoverable, e.g. low values which are uneconomical to 
pursue, and therefore may need to be written off.  In 2020/2021 to date 
(October 2020), there were 111 (54 SODC and 57 VWHDC) overpayment 
invoices written off.  A sample of 40 (20 SODC and 20 VWHDC) invoices 
were selected and review confirmed that all write offs were: 

• reviewed by the councils’ revenues and benefits team; 

• authorised appropriately, in line with the councils’ constitution. 
 

5.4.5 Monthly reconciliations of overpayment invoices that have been written off by 
Capita in the Capita ONE revenues and benefits system are performed, once 
the councils authorise the write off.  Review of the reconciliation process 
identified no issues. 
 

5.4.6 Area assurance: Limited 
One recommendation has been restated as a result of our work in this area 
(Rec 3). 
 

5.5 Housing benefits subsidy claim 
 

5.5.1 The councils claim government subsidy to cover eligible benefit expenditure.  
In 2019/2020, the councils’ external auditors (Ernst and Young) gave both 
SODC and VWHDC an unqualified opinion on their subsidy return.  As Ernst 
and Young review, the benefit claims for subsidy purposes as prescribed by 
the Department of Works and Pensions (DWP), no additional checks have 
been made as a part of this review. Page 42

Agenda Item 7



 
5.5.2 Area assurance: Full 

No recommendations have been made as a result of our work in this area. 
 

5.6 Prevent and detect fraud 
 

5.6.1 The councils follow the guidance provided in the following policies regarding 
detection and referral of fraud: 

• joint anti-fraud and corruption policy; 

• joint anti-fraud and corruption policy response plan; 

• joint prosecutions and sanctions policy (specifically for benefit fraud).  
Internal audit reviewed each policy and concluded they are adequately 
detailed and provide details of the key decision makers and tools available for 
council prosecutions. 
 

5.6.2 There are three ways the councils’ fraud and investigation team are notified of 
any suspected fraud either by: 

• National Fraud Initiative (NFI); 

• Capita benefits assessors; or 

• members of the public. 
Both councils also publicise the council’s stance against benefit fraud and 
encourage members of the public to report any suspected fraud on their 
respective websites.  Capita benefits assessors refer any potential fraud to 
the fraud and investigation team either via I@W (electronic document and 
records management system) or email for further scrutiny.  It is noted that 
housing benefit fraud is investigated by DWP’s single fraud investigation 
service; however, are routed through the councils’ fraud and investigation 
team and checked for any potential work regarding CTRS prior to passing the 
referral to the DWP. 
 

5.6.3 A data sharing agreement is in place between DWP and the councils in 
Oxfordshire, and any information required is requested by completing a local 
authority information exchange form, if DWP require information, or a single 
fraud investigation referral, if the councils require information from DWP.   
 

5.6.4 The fraud team maintain a record of successful council tax sanctions and 
prosecutions which records the future weekly benefit saving to the council. 
 

5.6.5 Area assurance: Substantial 
No recommendations have been made as a result of our work in this area. 
 

5.7 Performance 
 

5.7.1 The councils send their performance statistics (i.e. performance indicators 
that measure the speed and accuracy with which applications are 
administered) obtained from the Capita ONE revenues and benefits system 
and report these monthly to the DWP.  The DWP also publish the councils’ 
performance statistics (e.g. speed of processing) on their website.  From 1 
August 2016, Capita provide the benefits service under the 5CP contract and 
there is an output specification, key performance indicators (KPI’s) and 
performance indicators (PI) for the services within the contract.  These targets 
are a part of managing the contract with Capita who provide benefits services 
to both SODC and VWHDC.  The November 2020 report was reviewed and 
found that there is no explanation for any variances occurred. 
 

5.7.2 Area assurance: Substantial 
Page 43

Agenda Item 7



One previous recommendation has been restated as a result of our work in 
this area (Rec 2). 
 

6. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 
 
6.1 Internal audit would like to take this opportunity to thank all staff involved for 

their assistance with the audit. 
 
7. CATEGORISATION OF RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
7.1 To assist management in using our reports, we have categorised our 

recommendations according to their level of priority as follows: 
 

 High risk Fundamental control weakness for 
senior management action 
 

Rec 3 
 

 Medium risk Other control weakness for local 
management action 
 

Recs 1 and 4  

 Low risk Recommended best practice to 
improve overall control 

Rec 2 

 

Page 44

Agenda Item 7



OBSERVATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

RESTATED RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
POLICIES & PROCEDURES  

 

1. GDPR compliance (Medium Risk) 

Rationale Recommendation Responsibility 

Best Practice 
Application forms and website 
information for DHP, housing benefits 
and CTRS contain, or link to, GDPR 
information and privacy notices. 

Findings 
There is no reference to data protection 
privacy notices or the councils’ data 
protection information on the following: 

• DHP application form; 

• Council webpages for applying for 
DHP or housing benefits and 
CTRS. 

 
It is noted that this has been a 
recommendation in the last two years 
audits and is yet to be implemented. 
 
Risk 
Non-compliance to GDPR legislation, 
which could result in fines and 
reputational damage. 

Review and update housing 
benefits/CTRS and DHP 
information on the councils’ 
webpages and on application 
forms to include GDPR 
information, e.g. privacy 
notices. 

Revenues and Benefits 
Manager 

Management Response Implementation Due 
Date 

Recommendation is Agreed 

 
We are currently completing the RoPA which will be used to inform 
individual privacy notices. We have certain information included in 
privacy statements which are on the web e.g. NFI and data sharing etc 
but the notices will be more conclusive. 
 
Management response: Revenues and Benefits Manager 

30 September 2021 

 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING AND REPORTING  

 

2. Performance reports (Low Risk) 

Rationale Recommendation Responsibility 

Best Practice 
The councils receive regular reports on 
all agreed performance indicators with 
explanations of variances. 
 
Findings 
A monthly spreadsheet is provided by 
Capita recording performance for 
housing benefit and CTRS as well as 
council tax and NNDR.  However, 
review of the November 2020 
spreadsheet found that explanations of 
variances are not provided. 
 
Risk 

Monthly performance reports 
should include explanations of 
variances. 

Revenues and Benefits 
Manager and Capita 
Contract Director 

Page 45

Agenda Item 7



Areas of underperformance may 
remain unidentified and uncorrected. 

Management Response Implementation Due 
Date 

Recommendation is Agreed in Principle 

 
Our councils are now part of the 5C’s arrangements, and the 
performance reports are produced in accordance with those governing 
requirements. Saying that, a shortened bespoke report similar to what 
we received in the past (under the previous stand-alone South and Vale 
contract was reintroduced but Covid workloads de-prioritised it. This 
would provide commentary on performance and I will ask for it to be 
produced again.  
 
 
Management response: Revenues and Benefits Manager 

31 October 2021 

 
BENEFITS OVERPAYMENT RECOVERY  
 

3. Recovery process (High Risk) 

Rationale Recommendation Responsibility 

Best Practice 
All overpayments are progressed 
through the recovery process outlined 
in the corporate debt recovery strategy 
and the benefits over payments guide 
in a timely and efficient manner. 
 
Findings 
In 2020/2021 to date (as at October 
2020), there were 4,193 (1,987 SODC 
& 2,206 VWHDC) outstanding housing 
benefits overpayment invoices totalling 
£5m (£2.5m SODC and £2.5m 
VWHDC). 
 
A sample of 40 (20 SODC and 20 
VWHDC) outstanding housing benefits 
overpayment invoices was selected. 
Testing identified that 26 (11 SODC 
and 15 VWHDC) overpayment invoices 
had not been progressed through the 
recovery process efficiently and in line 
with the corporate debt recovery 
strategy. 
 
Reasons for this included: 

• Letters being issued late; 

• Letters not being issued at all; 

• Delay in progressing actions; 

• Delay in sending the debt to legal for 
recovery; 

• Delays in recommencing debt 
recovery following the outcome of an 
appeal; 

• Delay between the customer 
agreement and the termination letter. 

Furthermore, in eight of the 19 tests, 
warning letters were issued for 
customer agreements covering more 
than one invoice. Separate warning 
letters were sent out for EACH invoice 
rather than just one covering / detailing 
all the invoices covered in the customer 

a) Capita to review their 
procedures to ensure that 
they comply with the actions 
and timescales set out in the 
corporate debt recovery 
strategy and the benefits 
overpayment guide. This will 
include reviewing their 
procedure for issuing warning 
letters to clients. 

b)  
c)   

 

 

Revenues and Benefits 
Manager 

Page 46

Agenda Item 7



agreement. This could be unhelpful 
and confusing for the customer. 

Risk 
Debts are not recovered resulting in 
debt write off at a loss to the 
authorities. 

Management Response Implementation Due 
Date 

Recommendation is Agreed 

 
I absolutely agree that the failure to collect overpayments poses a risk a 
to the councils and their finances. However, it should be noted that the 
councils took the decision not to pursue formal recovery through the 
courts and the DWP stopped processing deductions from social security 
benefits – both due to the pandemic. We did continue to issue invoices 
and first reminders and continued to send DEA’s to employers. We also 
began to send new instructions to DWP when the suspension was lifted. 
We also continued to recover over overpayments from ongoing HB 
throughout the pandemic.  
 
For the last few months, we have been designing a new final notice 
process with Capita to progress to county court hearings, which will take 
place via Video Platform (CVP) but unfortunately due mainly to annual 
billing priorities this has not been finalised.  
 
We are also due to have a review of the overpayment function and 
resources and hopefully this will help to gain ground lost through the 
pandemic 
 
So, although failure to collect is high risk, I would probably challenge the 
categorisation that there are fundamental weaknesses at this moment in 
time for a revenue stream which is notoriously difficult to collect  - and 
we are still going through the pandemic.  
 
 
Management response: Revenues and Benefits Manager 

30 November 2021 

 
2020/2021 AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
ASSESSMENTS 
 

4. Quality checks of assessments (Medium Risk) 

Rationale Recommendation Responsibility 

Best Practice 
Quality checks are undertaken of 
assessments and the results are fully 
reported to enable corrective action to 
be taken to prevent errors in the future. 
 
Findings 
Capita undertake monthly quality 
checking. However, the reasons for 
any errors are not currently reported 
back to the councils. 
  
Risk 
Errors continue to be made. 

The revenues & benefits 
manage considers whether 
Capita should re-convene 
sending the quality check data 
alongside the monthly 
summary report. 

Revenues and Benefits 
Manager 

Management Response Implementation Due 
Date 

Recommendation is Agreed in Principle 

 

30 September 2021 

Page 47

Agenda Item 7



The councils team undertakes a statutory check of assessments and 
feeds back on errors to Capita. Capita also undertakes its own quality 
checks before payments are made. Statistical data is provided to the 
councils on this. Reasons for errors were also previously given. I will 
consider whether this additional information should be requested once 
again.  
 
Management response: Revenues and Benefits Manager 

 
  

Page 48

Agenda Item 7



APPENDIX 1b 

Payroll 2020/2021 

 
MANAGEMENT SUMMARY 

 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 This report details the internal audit review of procedures, controls and the 

management of risk in relation to payroll.  The audit has been undertaken in 
accordance with the 2020/2021 audit plan agreed with the audit and 
governance committee of South Oxfordshire District Council (SODC) and 
Vale of White Horse District Council (VWHDC).  The audit has a priority score 
of 22.  The audit approach is provided in the audit framework in Appendix 1. 
 

1.2 The following areas have been covered during the course of this review to 
provide assurance that: 

 
 

Obj1: Policies and 
procedures  

• Policies and procedures are in place, 
regularly reviewed, updated, and 
communicated. 

Obj2: System parameters  
• System access rights are appropriately 

controlled to relevant officers. 

Obj3: Amendments to 
standing data 

• Checking processes are in place to identify 
and review payment anomalies over 
tolerance. 

Obj4: Data and information 
sharing  

• Access to personal information is restricted 
to relevant authorised individuals. 

Obj5: Pay calculations 
• A formal review of pay calculations is 

conducted prior to the approval of 
transactions for payment. 

Obj6: Payroll reconciliation 
• A formal reconciliation of payroll is 

completed to ensure the accuracy of 
payments and associated transactions. 

Obj7: Establishment 
listings 

• The HR establishment listings are in place, 
up-to-date and accurate. 

 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 On 1 April 2020, the payroll service transitioned in-house from the previous 

service provider (Capita). A 5 councils partnership entered into a contractual 
agreement with Zellis UK, for the provision of the HR and Payroll system 
ResourceLink. South Oxfordshire District Council is named as the contracts 
lead client, in partnership with Vale of White Horse District Council, Mendip 
District Council, Havant Borough Council, and Hart District Council.  
 

2.2 This is the first review of payroll since the service returned in-house. A review 
of travel and expenses, pensionable pay and annual leave has been included 
within this review, where previously, these areas have been reported on 
separately. 
 

Page 49

Agenda Item 7



2.3 The south and vale payroll function is managed by the strategic HR team, 
(with associated responsibilities split across both the HR advisory and HR 
payroll teams) and is delivered under corporate services. The team has 
undergone a period of embedding the new payroll system, where initial focus 
has been to deliver the payroll service accurately and on time. 
 

2.4 In March 2021, a total of 611 officers (388 SODC and 223 VWHDC) 
were processed through payroll.  Basic salary payments in March 2021 
amounted to £1,169,366.19 (£762,348.36 SODC and £407,017.83 
VWHDC). 

 
3. PREVIOUS AUDIT REPORTS 
 
3.1 Payroll was last subject to an internal audit review in March 2020 and eight 

recommendations were raised and all were agreed.  A limited assurance 
opinion was issued. 
 

3.2 Of the eight previous recommendations, seven were associated to the 
previous payroll provider’s procedures (Capita). A review of those 
recommendations has therefore not taken place. The one remaining 
recommendation has been updated as part of this review (Rec 1). 
 

 
4. 2020/2021 AUDIT ASSURANCE 
 
4.1 Limited assurance: There are some weaknesses in the adequacy of the 

internal control system which put the system objectives at risk and/or the 
level of non-compliance puts some of the system objectives at risk. 
 

4.2 14 joint recommendations have been raised in this review. Three high risk, 
eight medium risk and three low risk. 
 

 

Page 50

Agenda Item 7



5. MAIN FINDINGS 
 
5.1 Policies and procedures 

 
5.1.1 HR polices are published on the council’s intranet, Jarvis, where 20 polices 

are associated to employee payments and leave entitlements. Of these 20 
policies, two had recently been reviewed and implemented, two were not 
dated, and the remaining 18 were last evidenced as being reviewed between 
2011 and 2016.  
 

5.1.2 As reported within the recent HR Management audit 2020/2021, there is a 
process currently underway to review and revise HR policies. However, there 
is no timescale currently in place for completion of this process.  
 

5.1.3 Recommendations relating to the HR payroll policy review process have been 
reported within successive annual payroll audit reports since 2014/2015; and 
have been updated within this review. Similarly, a recommendation has also 
been raised within the recent HR Management audit 2020/2021. 
 

5.1.4 Procedural guidance for payroll routines is not currently documented. This is 
acknowledged by the team and has been proposed that this will be 
developed following closure of the first year-end and reporting process.   
 

5.1.5 Initial systems training was provided to the team by the software provider, 
Zellis, and further support is provided remotely for queries upon request. 
Additionally, in-house support is provided to the team by officers with 
previous knowledge and experience of the payroll systems, who have joined 
the councils from the previous payroll service provider. The immediate payroll 
team has also attended a payroll and HR management course, hosted by an 
external provider. This focused on the legal aspects of payroll processing, 
associated HR management, and current legislation. There is currently no 
formal in-house training in place for processing payroll and associated 
system procedures.  
 

5.1.6 Area assurance: Satisfactory 
One recommendation has been updated from the last review (Rec 1) and two 
recommendations have been made as a result of our work in this area (Recs 
2 and 3). 
 

5.2 Systems  
 

5.2.1 System user access permissions are not unique to each member council and 
currently allow approved users, (within the 5 councils partnership), access to 
each council’s personal data held within the Resourcelink system. As a result, 
data sharing agreements and a fair use processing notice are in place across 
the member councils. This includes a statement to work towards the eventual 
segregation of individual council’s data, ensuring data is restricted only to 
employees of that council and strengthening adherence to data protection 
legislation.   
 

5.2.2 The original timeframe was expected to encompass the April, May and June 
2020 pay runs, with the expectation that visibility would be restricted by July 
2020. The deadline of which has passed. 
 

5.2.3 Testing of new user access profiles is ongoing, with a view to eventually limit 
access to other council’s data. There are currently challenges, where limiting 
such access, results in restricting the individual councils from running Page 51

Agenda Item 7



calculations and accessing critical screens and reports at month-end. Testing 
of these user profiles is projected to reconvene in June 2021, with an aim to 
restrict employees seeing data across all councils (S&V officers only see S&V 
data). 
 

5.2.4 A system ‘MOT report’ was provided to the councils by the payroll software 
provider, Zellis, in October 2020. The report contains 24 recommendations 
within an action plan to explore opportunities to develop and optimise the 
ResourceLink system, to both improve service delivery, and system 
performance. Internal audit was provided with a status update, demonstrating 
the progress being made. As at 10 March 2021, eight actions were currently 
under review with Zellis Payroll Advisory Service (PAS). Once confirmed 
whether work can be carried out by PAS, this is to be included on a wider 
data cleanse project plan. Further actions were also recorded as underway. 
 

5.2.5 Area assurance: Substantial 
One recommendation has been made as a result of our work in this area 
(Rec 4). 
 

5.3 Amendments to standing data  
 

5.3.1 Checks are in place by the HR payroll team to ensure that employee details 
are entered onto the ResourceLink payroll system in a timely manner and 
that personal details are accurate. Through our review, it was identified that 
where omissions in supporting new starter and leaver documentation was 
evident, this had not been highlighted and referred back to the HR advisory 
team and service managers to complete.  
 

5.3.2 Checks were generally completed by a secondary officer, however, on 28% 
(11 occasions) for new starters, 15% (three occasions) for pay 
adjustments/contract variations and 8% (two occasions) for leavers, this task 
had been completed by the same individual that had entered the original 
details onto the Resourcelink system, and does not provide suitable 
segregation of duty. 
 

5.3.3 Documentation to support eligibility of the right to work in the UK was not 
available on file for eight VWHDC tupe’d employees. The details of which 
have been raised with the HR advisory team to review. Non-compliance 
within this area presents an exposure to potential fines of up to £20,000 for 
each illegal worker, where sufficient checks are not completed prior to 
offering employment. 
 

5.3.4 The ResourceLink system requires all overtime, standby and on-call 
payments to be reviewed and approved by managers, prior to being released 
for payment. Currently, there is no report available to the HR payroll team 
that provides an overview of overtime, on-call and standby payments to 
ensure visibility of all transactions, claim periods and approvals.  
 

5.3.5 Per our review, 27 (68%) overtime, on-call and standby payments (15 SODC 
and 12 VWHDC) could not be reconciled to system entry, where dates had 
not been entered against the individual claim periods (days) and multiple 
claims had been grouped together.  
 

5.3.6 Supporting overtime and standby claim forms were also not routinely 
available to support the submitted claims. It is not currently a requirement for 
supporting claim forms to be submitted to the HR team, (or attached to 
individual claims within the system). As a result, there is a greater risk of Page 52

Agenda Item 7



misappropriation where there is no visibility of supporting records and an 
absence of suitable management checks.  
 

5.3.7 Mileage claims are currently submitted with a supporting VAT fuel receipt by 
officers within the Myview HR portal. However, officers are not routinely 
submitting full travel details to support their business mileage claims, 
including starting and end locations. 23 (nine SODC and 14 VWHDC), or 
92% of mileage claims reviewed within the sample, did not have supporting 
journey details recorded within the system. 
 

5.3.8 Internal audit is therefore unable to validate that the total amount of business 
miles claimed reconciles to individual officer claims. This again presents a 
risk of misappropriation where there is no visibility of supporting records and 
an absence of suitable management checks. There is also a risk that current 
controls may impact the council’s responsibility to ensure accuracy and 
compliance with HMRC regulations, to enable the councils to claim back VAT 
on business related mileage. 
 

5.3.9 Annual leave entitlement is allocated within the ResourceLink system, as per 
the employee’s contractual agreement and working conditions. Per our 
review of annual leave entitlements, one VWHDC new starter had a different 
value of annual leave entitlement entered onto the Resourcelink system, to 
that recorded on the employee’s Statement of Terms/contractual agreement. 
A supporting manual leave calculation was requested from the HR payroll 
team, but this had not been provided at the time of audit completion.  
 

5.3.10 Furthermore, the final holiday balance payment for one SODC employee 
could not be reconciled to the ResourceLink termination balance. On 
discussion with the HR payroll coordinator, it is believed that the remaining 
annual leave balance may not have triggered due to a system issue for this 
individual. 
 

5.3.11 Area assurance: Limited 
Six recommendations have been made as a result of our work in this area 
(Recs 5-10). 
 

5.4 Data and information sharing  
 

5.4.1 Security measures are in place between the councils and Zellis (payroll 
processor) for both the holding and transferring of payroll data. Payroll 
reports and personal information sent electronically between the councils and 
Zellis is sent via password protected, encrypted files, with pre-determined 
access codes required to view documents. Password are changed on a 
monthly basis to enhance security protocols. All payroll reports, associated 
information and payment approvals are retained within folders on the 
accountancy shared drive and folder access is restricted to authorised 
officers. 
 

5.4.2 The interim strategic finance manager authorises the monthly payroll run, 
following their own checks, and those made by both the HR team. It is noted 
that the authorisation of the pay run is completed by electronically signing 
and dating the Bacs release form. This form does not contain any personal 
data and is sent to the payroll processor (Zellis) via standard unencrypted 
email, however, consideration should be given to the potential risk of fraud by 
misrepresentation, if accessed by an unintended party; given the authorising 
signature being attached to the form.  
 Page 53

Agenda Item 7



5.4.3 Payroll queries and document requests by ex-employees are managed by the 
HR team. Where ex-employees can no longer access the Myview system 
themselves, the HR team have the capability to access historic information, 
(within the retention period), to resolve queries. Documentation is sent 
electronically to the individual’s; however, this is not currently sent securely 
via encrypted, password protected files, which presents a risk to data security 
due to the sensitive personal information contained within. 
 

5.4.4 Area assurance: Satisfactory 
Two recommendations have been made as a result of our work in this area 
(Recs 11 and 12). 
 

5.5 Payroll reconciliation   
 

5.5.1 The interim strategic finance manager undertakes monthly payroll 
reconciliations to ensure accuracy of finalised calculations and reports, prior 
to authorising payments. This also includes checks on payments made to 
both HMRC and third parties, i.e. Oxford County Council (LGPS), Prudential 
ACV (Pension fund) and Unison.  Internal audit sampled a three-month 
period and reconciled final calculations, reports and payment authorisations. 
All were evidenced as being reviewed and authorised prior to payment and 
reconciled to the final calculated payroll reports for both SODC and VWHDC. 
 

5.5.2 A review of monthly Bacs authorisation forms from April 2020 to February 
2021, found that 19 (30%) of the 62 Bacs payment forms, contained date 
errors for the payroll processing period to which they related. Additionally, 
final payroll and third-party payment authorisation forms for both SODC and 
VWHDC in July 2020 and August 2020, were not retained on file. At the time 
of review these forms could not be provided.  
 

5.5.3 Once payments have been approved and processed, the accountancy team 
complete a monthly reconciliation across associated payroll and finance 
systems, and council bank accounts. Any anomalies or queries are raised for 
the HR payroll team to review and provide explanation, prior to any 
corrections being applied to balance the accounts. 
 

5.5.4 Per our review and analysis of the payroll reconciliations and balance sheets 
for October 2020, November 2020 and December 2020, review found that all 
reports reconciled for both SODC and VWHDC and explanations to support 
adjustments appeared reasonable. At the time of review, a variance of £15.57 
is noted for the final year end reconciliation for SODC, of which the value 
reported is not of material concern and is awaiting review. The final year end 
payroll reconciliation for VWHDC balanced to zero. 
 

5.5.5 Area assurance: Substantial 
One recommendation has been made as a result of our work in this area 
(Rec 13). 

5.6 Establishment listings  
 

5.6.1 The establishment list is maintained by the HR payroll team and is sent to 
service managers for review on a bi-monthly (every other month) basis.  The 
document is currently an excel based spreadsheet that requires manual 
intervention to update and amend employee details across all service teams. 
This relies on the service managers conducting a thorough review of their 
team’s employment details and communicating back to the HR team where 
changes are required. Changes and amendments are then uploaded to the 

Page 54

Agenda Item 7



master file document and retained on the HR shared drive. This currently 
involves a significant amount of administration and coordination to complete. 
 

5.6.2 Previously, a system based copy of the Establishment Listing was produced, 
managed, and retained by Capita (the previous payroll service provider). As 
reported in the last audit, the report was found to be wholly unreliable due to 
the councils’ service restructure in 2017, and development of the excel based 
spreadsheet is in response to this issue. The HR payroll team are looking to 
further develop an accurate system based Establishment List report, to aid 
accessibility and management of records by service managers directly, in 
turn, reducing the time spent administering this document. 
 

5.6.3 Area assurance: Full 
One recommendation has been made as a result of our work in this area 
(Rec 14). 

 
 
6. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 
 
6.1 Internal audit would like to take this opportunity to thank all staff involved for 

their assistance with the audit. 
 
7. CATEGORISATION OF RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
7.1 To assist management in using our reports, we have categorised our 

recommendations according to their level of priority as follows: 
 

 High risk Fundamental control weakness for 
senior management action 
 

Recs 7, 8 and 9 
 

 Medium risk Other control weakness for local 
management action 
 

Recs 1, 2, 3, 4, 6, 11, 
12 and 13 

 Low risk Recommended best practice to 
improve overall control 

Recs 5, 10 and 14 

 

Page 55

Agenda Item 7



OBSERVATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 
Recommendation updated from the previous audit: 

1. Policies (Medium Risk) 

Rationale Recommended 
Action(s) 

Responsibility 

Findings 

HR polices referring to aspects of payroll 
and employee payments and entitlements 
are outdated and overdue a review.  

Of the 20 HR policies published to officers 
on Jarvis, 16 policies were last formally 
reviewed between 2011 and 2016, of 
which, some contain references to 
previous employee HR systems no longer 
in use (HR Pro), incorrect entitlements of 
leave, the previous payroll processor 
(Capita) and lists old contact details and 
locations for the HR team and council 
offices (Crowmarsh). 

 

Policies identified, (but not limited to) this 
audit, that are overdue a review and have 
been identified with a direct impact to the 
payroll process include: 

• Overtime and Allowances; 

• Sickness and Absence; 

• Travel and Expenses; 

• Maternity, Paternity, Adoption and 
Surrogacy; and  

• Annual Leave and bank holidays. 

 

As reported within the recent HR 
Management audit, the HR team are in 
the process of reviewing and updating 
policies.   

 
A policy review framework is now in place, 
which was agreed by both strategic 
management team (SMT) and Unison; 
titled ‘The HR Policy Review Process’. 
 
It is noted that internal audit has provided 
recommendations relating to the HR 
policy review process, as reported within 
successive annual payroll audits since 
2014/2015. 
 
Risk(s)  
If policies are not updated to reflect 
current operational requirements and 
procedures, there is a greater risk of 
officers not following the correct practices 
and will result in a difficulty to manage 
performance related issues. 
If version control is not fully completed 
and up-to-date, there is a risk of policies 
not being reviewed and updated in a 
timely manner and not reflecting current 
practices. 

Complete the policy 
review process 
incorporating the 
approved ‘HR Policy 
Review Process’ 
ensuring: 
a) Version control is 

documented on all 
policies including the 
date of next review. 

b) All policies should be 
reviewed and 
amended to reflect 
Milton Park as the 
council’s current 
base premises. 

c) Polices that refer to 
the previous payroll 
processor (Capita) 
and systems (HR Pro) 
should be reviewed 
and procedures 
amended. 

d) The contact details 
listed within policies 
should be updated to 
reflect current 
organisational 
structures. 

 

Strategic HR Manager 
 

Management Response Implementation Due 
Date Page 56

Agenda Item 7



Recommendation is Agreed 
 
Management response: This overlaps with a recommendation from the 
HR Management audit and is already an ongoing action. 

31 December 2021  
 
(for existing payroll-related 
policies) 
 
 

 
2020/2021 audit recommendations: 

2. Procedural guidance  (Medium Risk) 

Rationale Recommended Action(s) Action Owner(s) 

Findings 
Procedural guidance documents are 
not currently in place. On discussions 
with the HR Operational Lead, formal 
in-house payroll procedures are 
currently not documented to assist 
officers’ complete payroll duties.  
This has been acknowledged by the 
team, where focus has been to deliver 
the payroll service accurately and on 
time within the first year. It has been 
proposed this will be addressed 
following completion of the first year-
end processing and reporting period to 
ensure any issues experienced are 
identified, appropriately resolved, and 
documented.  
 
Risk(s)  
Without procedural guidance officers 
do not have a reference document to 
ensure they are following correct 
procedures whilst conducting their 
duties. 
No reference for new staff members to 
follow may lead to incorrect practices. 

a) Develop formal procedural 
guidance to assist officers 
and ensure compliance in 
all aspects of the payroll 
function. 

b) Ensure that procedural 
guidance reflects the 
council’s own HR polices 
where appropriate. 

c) Ensure that procedural 
guidance is maintained, 
and version controlled 
with a review date. 
 

Strategic HR Manager 
 
 

Management Response Implementation Due 
Date 

Recommendation is Agreed 
 
Management response: To achieve good quality procedure documents, 
the team needs to undertake process mapping activities (i.e. current / 
future state etc.) This needs to be a physical activity and so has been 
delayed by the ongoing lockdown / office closure. 

31 December 2021 
 
(COVID restrictions 
permitting) 
 
 

 

3. Training (Medium Risk) 

Rationale Recommended Action(s) Action Owner(s) 

Findings 
There is currently no formal in-house 
training in place for officers processing 
payroll and associated system 
procedures.  
 
As part of the transition process, the 
HR operational lead and both HR 
coordinators attended initial training 
sessions provided by Zellis, the 
systems host and provider, but further 
‘refresher training’ has not taken place 
at this time.  
 
Risk(s)  
Without formal training, there is a 
higher risk of potential errors, 

a) Develop formal training to 
assist officers in all 
aspects of the payroll 
function. 

b) Ensure that the training 
programme reflects the 
council’s own HR polices 
where appropriate. 

c) Ensure that regular 
refresher training is in 
place to maintain 
knowledge across the 
team; and 

d) There is regular review of 
training materials 
following any updates to 

Strategic HR Manager 
 

Page 57

Agenda Item 7



inconsistencies and a lack of 
accountability.   
No reference for new staff members to 
follow may lead to incorrect practices. 

associated legislation and 
systems. 
 

Management Response Implementation Due 
Date 

Recommendation is Agreed 
 
Management response: This overlaps with recommendation number 2, as 
the process mapping / procedure documents will provide the basis for 
instructions for current and new payroll team members.  
 
The Zellis training is very generic (i.e. it doesn’t look like our version), so I 
would question the value in anyone attending as a refresher, but certainly 
will be considered for new team members in the future. 

31 December 2021 
 

 
SYSTEMS 

4. Data security controls (Medium Risk) 

Rationale Recommended Action(s) Action Owner(s) 

Findings 
The current user access profiles for 
ResourceLink (back office) were 
inherited from Capita and the 
associated system security 
controls/settings currently allows 
access by authorised HR payroll 
officers across the 5 councils to access 
each council’s personal employee 
data.  
 
This presents a greater risk to data 
protection. Data sharing agreements 
and a fair-use processing notice have 
been implemented appropriately as a 
result, across the five councils.  
 
The data sharing agreements are 
intended to be a temporary measure, 
with officers of the respective councils 
agreeing to work towards the eventual 
segregation of their data and ensure 
visibility of an individual council’s data, 
is restricted only to employees of that 
council.  
The original timeframe was expected 
to encompass the April, May and June 
2020 pay runs, with the expectation 
that visibility would be restricted by 
July 2020. This deadline of which has 
passed. 
 
The HR systems lead officer has been 
testing a new user profile, which will 
limit access to other council’s data, but 
it hasn’t yet been rolled out. There are 
currently challenges where limiting 
access results in restricting the 
individual councils’ from running 
calculations and accessing critical 
screens and reports at month-end.  
 
The HR systems lead officer advised 
internal audit that testing has not 
progressed due to this reporting issue 
and has indicated that this is now 

a) Continue development of 
the new user profiles and 
system enhancements to 
ensure access to sensitive 
personal information is 
restricted to officers of 
their own council and that 
access to such data is 
appropriate to the user’s 
needs. 

b) Ensure officers are aware 
of their personal 
responsibility in handling 
personal data, especially 
where it relates to other 
councils. 

c) Continue to progress and 
implement appropriate 
recommendations 
contained within the Zellis 
systems review report to 
explore opportunities to 
develop and optimise the 
ResourceLink system to 
both improve service 
delivery and system 
performance. 

d) Explore whether system 
enhancements can be 
applied to provide an 
email alert/confirmation of 
change communication to 
officers where significant 
amendments to their 
personal data is 
completed within both the 
ResourceLink and MyView 
systems. 
 
 

Strategic HR Manager 
 
 

Page 58

Agenda Item 7



projected to reconvene in June 2021, 
following the first year-end process. 
 
The new test profile being worked on 
will restrict employees seeing data 
across all councils (S&V officers will 
only see S&V data).  
 
A systems MOT report was provided 
by Zellis to the councils HR Projects 
Lead in October 2020. The report 
contains 24 recommendations within 
an action plan. The HR Projects Lead 
provided internal audit with a status 
update, demonstrating the progress 
being made. As at 10 March 2021, 
eight actions were currently under 
review with Zellis Payroll Advisory 
Service (PAS). Once confirmed 
whether work can be carried out by 
PAS, this is to be included on a wider 
data cleanse project plan. Further 
actions were also recorded as 
underway. 
 
Risk(s)  
A greater risk to the mishandling of 
personal data and data breach is 
present as a result of unrestricted 
access across all 5 council’s employee 
data. 

Management Response Implementation Due 
Date 

Recommendation is Agreed 
 
Management response: We had hoped the user profiles would be in place 
before the audit, but there was an issue with the new profile created when 
it came to running reports. This is because the database is shared 
between all councils. 
 

31 December 2021 
 
 

 
AMENDMENTS TO STANDING DATA 

5. Secondary checks against data entry (Low Risk) 

Rationale Recommended Action(s) Action Owner(s) 

Findings 
Per our review of the Payroll Actions 
Tracker, secondary checks of personal 
data entry onto the ResourceLink 
system were completed by the same 
individual on: 

• 28% (11 occasions) for new 
starters (three SODC and eight 
VWHDC); 

• 15% (three occasions) for pay 
adjustments/contract variations (1 
SODC and two VWHDC); and 

• 8% (two occasions) for leavers (1 
SODC and 1 VWHDC). 

 
It is noted that in all instances, these 
checks had been completed on a 
different date to that of original system 
entry.  
 
 
Risk(s)  

All secondary checks to verify 
the accuracy of system data 
entry is completed by a 
different individual to ensure 
suitable segregation of duty. 

 

Strategic HR Manager 
 
 

Page 59

Agenda Item 7



There is a risk that errors may be 
missed and not be identified where 
there is no clear segregation of duty. 
 

Management Response Implementation Due 
Date 

Recommendation is Agreed 
 
Management response: N/A 
 

30 September 2021 
 
 

 

6. Employee management records  (Medium Risk) 

Rationale Recommended Action(s) Action Owner(s) 

Findings 
A review of documentation to support 
employee changes applied within the 
ResourceLink payroll system provided 
the following findings: 
New Starters: 

• 58% (23) Notification of 
Appointment (NOA) forms 
completed by recruiting managers 
(eight SODC and 15 VWHDC), did 
not display the correct job post 
number and seven SODC forms 
did not record the new starter’s 
work pattern. 

• 60% (12) VWHDC NOA forms 
were not signed/dated by the 
recruiting manager (it is noted that 
all 12 were tupe’d employees 
within the technical services team).  

• Two SODC NOA forms were noted 
with authorising signatory/date 
omissions and one VWHDC NOA 
form was omitted from a new 
starter’s file.  

• Five (four SODC and one 
VWHDC) new starter Statement of 
Terms contained anomalies to the 
employment information entered 
onto ResourceLink (including start 
dates, working hours and pay 
rate). 

• Bank details forms were not 
present on file for 10 (five SODC 
and five VWHDC) new starters, 
although bank details had been 
declared and entered accurately 
onto ResourceLink from 
accompanying New Starter forms. 

Leavers: 

• 88% (23) Notification of Leaver 
(NOL) forms (14 SODC and nine 
VWHDC) had not been signed and 
dated by the finance HR business 
partner (service accountant). 

• One SODC NOL form displayed a 
different last working day to that 
entered onto ResourceLink (+/- 1 
day). 

 
Risk(s)  
There is a lack of accountability and 
greater risk for error where employee 
management documentation is 

a) Where anomalies are 
noted and supporting 
documentation is 
incomplete, the HR payroll 
team are to refer the 
documentation back to 
the HR advisory team 
and/or service manager to 
complete and ensure 
appropriate authorisations 
are documented, prior to 
adding/amending data on 
the ResourceLink system. 

b) Review the anomalies 
identified within this 
review and action any 
amendments accordingly, 
where required. 

c) Review associated HR 
employee management 
documents, ensuring that 
all forms are relevant and 
appropriate for the task, 
limit duplication, and 
service managers have 
access to the appropriate 
information to fully 
complete all related 
documents. 
 
 
 

Strategic HR Manager 
 
 

Page 60

Agenda Item 7



incomplete and not suitably 
authorised. 
Errors and anomalies within employee 
records may cause issue where there 
are disputes relating to contractual 
matters. 
Duplication of forms requesting the 
same information presents time 
management inefficiencies and a 
greater risk to the mishandling of 
personal data.    
 

Management Response Implementation Due 
Date 

Recommendation is Agreed 
 
Management response: This link to recommendation number 2, where the 
process mapping / procedural notes will ensure checks and controls are 
built into the payroll processes. 

31 December 2021 
 
 

 

7. Right to Work Checks (High Risk) 

Rationale Recommended Action(s) Action Owner(s) 

Findings 
Evidence of eligibility to work in the UK 
was not available on request for eight 
tupe’d VWHDC employees. 
Copies of passports to support the 
right to work (RTW) were not present 
on file and suitable alternative RTW 
documents (including visa’s, entry 
clearance or full birth certificates and 
supporting official National Insurance 
documentation) were not held on 
personnel files. 
It is noted that for one VWHDC 
employee, a copy of their UK passport 
was present, but on review, personal 
details were blurred and unidentifiable. 
 
 
Risk(s)  
There is a risk to potential 
enforcement and fines of up to 
£20,000 for each illegal worker where 
sufficient checks are not completed 
prior to offering employment. 
 

Ensure right to work checks 
are completed for all new 
starters, prior to their start of 
employment. 
Complete checks for the eight 
VWHDC employees 
highlighted within this review 
and ensure sufficient 
documentation to support 
eligibility to work is retained 
on file. 

 

Strategic HR Manager 
 
 

Management Response Implementation Due 
Date 

Recommendation is Agreed 
 
Management response: This was affected by the difficulties in meeting 
people and scanning documents during lockdown. However, we accept 
this should have been retrospectively actioned. 
 

30 September 2021 
 
 

 

8. Overtime/On-call and Standby payments (High Risk) 

Rationale Recommended Action(s) Action Owner(s) 

Findings 
Per our review of 40 (20 SODC and 
20 VWHDC) overtime/on-call and 
standby payments, the following 
findings are noted: 

a) A system-based report 
should be developed that 
details overtime, standby 
and on-call payments to 
ensure visibility of all 
transactions, claim 

Strategic HR Manager 
 
 

Page 61

Agenda Item 7



• A specific system report that 
provides visibility to the HR team 
of all payments and authorisations 
for overtime, standby and on-call 
claims is not currently available.  

• Per our review, 27 (68%) 
standby/overtime payments (15 
SODC and 12 VWHDC) were not 
supported by a sufficient audit trail, 
where records provided did not 
document the date for which the 
individual claims had been 
submitted, or the 
approving/authorising manager.  

• Five SODC (25%) overtime claim 
forms had not been evidenced as 
reviewed/signed as authorised by 
a line manager and two VWHDC 
(10%) overtime claim forms had 
not been signed by the claimant. 

• Four (20%) VWHDC overtime 
claims were supported by 
individual officer timesheets (rather 
than an overtime claim forms). 
Internal audit was unable to 
reconcile two payments to the 
timesheets submitted, one 
including additional overtime hours 
of 88.88 hours, the other claiming 
38.75 hours above standard 
contractual hours for the period. 

• Two versions of the excel based 
claim forms are in circulation and 
have been submitted by officers 
within the sample. One of these 
forms is not approved, as per the 
guidance available to officers on 
Jarvis (HR Template 
forms/Overtime claim form). 

• It is not currently a requirement for 
supporting claim forms to be 
submitted to the HR team, (or 
attached to individual claims within 
the system). Sense-checking of 
claims lies with the service 
managers, prior to authorising 
claims. An Independent sample 
based review is not currently 
conducted. 

 
Risk(s)  
There is a greater risk of 
misappropriation where there is no 
visibility of supporting records and an 
absence of suitable management 
checks.  

periods and approvals. A 
sense-check of claims 
may then be introduced 
by the team and shared 
with service managers on 
a regular basis to identify 
any trends and anomalies. 

b) Consider requiring a copy 
of the authorised claim 
form to be attached to the 
claim submission within 
the MyView system, 
ensuring claim 
documentation is 
supported, easily 
accessible and provides a 
suitable audit trail within 
the system.  

c) Communicate to service 
managers that officers 
may only submit approved 
overtime claim forms to 
support claims.  

 
 

Management Response Implementation Due 
Date 

Recommendation is Agreed 
 
Management response: N/A 
 

31 December 2021 
 
 

 

9. Travel and subsistence claims (High Risk) 

Rationale Recommended Action(s) Action Owner(s) 
Page 62

Agenda Item 7



Findings 
As per the Travel and Expenses 
Policy, officers are required to submit a 
VAT receipt for fuel that is broadly 
related to the dates of journeys and is 
for an amount that covers the total 
miles claimed. 
Per our review of 40 (20 SODC and 
20 VWHDC) expense claims, the 
following findings are noted: 

• Officers did not routinely submit 
full travel details to support their 
mileage claims, including starting 
and end locations. 23 (nine SODC 
and 14 VWHDC), or 92% of 
mileage claims reviewed, did not 
have supporting journey details 
recorded within the system. 
Internal audit is therefore unable to 
validate that the total amount of 
miles claimed for business 
reconciles to the individual officer 
claims. 

• A VAT fuel receipt was submitted 
for each mileage claim reviewed 
during the sample. On review of 
mileage expense claims it would 
appear reasonable that the fuel 
receipts may support the mileage 
claims submitted within the 
sample, however, without 
supporting journey and vehicle 
details, internal audit are unable to 
validate the accuracy of mileage 
claims. 

• Three fuel receipts submitted to 
support a business mileage claim 
by one VWHDC officer had the 
date of transaction obscured. 
Internal audit was unable to 
validate the receipts were claimed 
timely and are valid for the claim 
period. 

• Items not specifically approved 
within the Travel and Expenses 
Policy were claimed within the 
sample period, although the claims 
appear reasonable in their nature, 
including: 
o Postage (x2 claims valued at 

£15.57); 
o Stationary (x2 claims valued at 

£21.00); 
o Parking (x1 claim valued at 

£6.00); 
o Household items (for homeless 

housing x1 claim valued at 
£33.00); and 

o PPE (boots and gloves for 
planning officer, x1 claim 
valued at £19.98).  

 
Risk(s)  
There is a greater risk of 
misappropriation where there is no 
visibility of supporting records and an 
absence of suitable management 
checks. 

a) System changes or 
additional documentation 
is provided to allow 
mileage claims to be 
verified and substantiated. 
Consider introducing a 
standardised business 
mileage log that details 
full journey details, 
(including start and end 
locations), vehicle details 
(make model/engine size) 
and a claimant declaration 
that can be reconciled to 
route planners as part of a 
review process.  

b) Consider requiring a copy 
of the mileage log to be 
attached to the authorised 
claim submission within 
the MyView system, 
ensuring claim 
documentation is 
supported, easily 
accessible and provides a 
suitable audit trail within 
the system.   

c) A sense-check of claims 
may then be introduced 
by the team and shared 
with service managers on 
a regular basis to identify 
any trends and anomalies. 

d) Consider expanding the 
Travel and Expenses 
Policy to cover all aspects 
of approved business 
expenditure (parking, 
postage, stationary etc), 
with appropriate control 
measures documented to 
assist management review 
and approval. 

Strategic HR Manager 
 
 

Page 63

Agenda Item 7



There is also a risk that current 
controls may impact the council’s 
responsibility to ensure accuracy and 
comply with HMRC regulations to 
enable the councils to claim back VAT 
on business related mileage.  

Management Response Implementation Due 
Date 

Recommendation is Agreed 
 
Management response: Although I agree with the recommendation, 
please note the expenses process is self-service, so the Payroll team 
cannot easily intervene in the given month and can only see the numbers, 
not the details. Therefore, the onus needs to be on training / educating 
managers, along with updating the policy, which will need to be carried 
out in conjunction with the Finance team. 
 

31 December 2021 
 
 

 

10. Annual Leave  (Low Risk) 

Rationale Recommended Action(s) Action Owner(s) 

Findings 
Per our review of 40 new starters (20 
SODC and 20 VWHDC) a check was 
completed to ensure that the correct 
annual leave entitlement was applied 
to the ResourceLink system, as per the 
individual’s Statement of Terms. The 
following findings are noted: 

• One VWHDC new starter had a 
different value of annual leave 
entitlement entered onto the payroll 
system, ResourceLink, to that 
recorded on the employee’s 
Statement of Terms/contractual 
agreement. A supporting manual 
leave calculation was requested 
from the HR payroll team, but this 
had not been provided at the time 
of audit completion. 
 

Per our review of 26 leavers (16 SODC 
and 10 VWHDC) a check was 
completed to ensure that the correct 
annual leave payment was applied 
within ResourceLink and appeared on 
the employee’s final payslip. The 
following findings are noted: 

• The final holiday balance payment 
for one SODC employee could not 
be reconciled to the ResourceLink 
termination balance. On discussion 
with the HR payroll coordinator, it is 
believed that the remaining 
balance did not trigger within the 
system for this individual. 

 
Risk(s)  
There is a risk to inaccuracies within 
payments where annual leave 
entitlements are not accurately applied 
on the system. 
If manual records are not retained on 
file there is no audit trail to support 
amendments to individual leave 
entitlements. 

a) Review the highlighted 
annual leave transactions 
to establish if system 
issues have caused 
inaccuracies in leave 
balances and investigate 
if a fix is required.  

b) Ensure where manual 
adjustments have been 
applied to leave balances, 
that these are supported 
with manual leave 
calculations and retained 
on file. 
 

Strategic HR Manager 
 
 

Page 64

Agenda Item 7



Management Response Implementation Due 
Date 

Recommendation is Agreed 
 
Management response: N/A 
 

31 October 2021 
 
 

 
DATA AND INFORMATION SHARING   

11. Data access management (Medium Risk) 

Rationale Recommended 
Action(s) 

Action Owner(s) 

Findings 
Internal audit obtained confirmation from 
the IT support officer of personnel 
currently authorised to access the 
hradminandpayroll@southandvale.gov.uk 
mailbox.  
Review highlighted that an individual not 
known to be working directly for the 
council, had access rights to view 
potentially sensitive information 
contained within the mailbox. The HR 
operational lead confirmed that access 
was removed once informed. 
 
 
Risk(s)  
There is a risk to the mishandling of 
personal data and GDPR where access 
to sensitive information is not suitably 
managed. 

a) Access rights to be 
regularly reviewed and 
updated ensuring 
access is only applied 
to current, approved 
individuals. 

b) Liaise with the IT and 
data protection teams to 
determine whether there 
has been a reportable 
exposure to personal 
data. 

Strategic HR Manager 
 
 

Management Response Implementation Due 
Date 

Recommendation is Agreed 
 
Management response: N/A 
 

30 September 2021 
 
 

 

12. Transferring sensitive information (Medium Risk) 

Rationale Recommended Action(s) Action Owner(s) 

Findings 
BACs release forms are sent from the 
council’s approving officer to the 
payroll provider, Zellis, via standard 
unencrypted emails on a monthly 
basis. 
It is noted that the BACs release forms 
do not contain any sensitive personal 
information; however on review, they 
do contain an electronic signature of 
the senior finance business partner (or 
authorising individual) approving 
payment. Consideration should be 
given to the potential risk of fraud by 
misrepresentation if accessed by an 
unintended party. 
 
The HR coordinator advised that the 
HR payroll team may be contacted and 
are able to access historic information 
that can be sent to ex-employees 
(payslips etc). This is sent 
electronically via PDF document, 

a) Explore system 
capabilities and establish 
whether a secure system 
based check and approval 
process may be 
implemented to authorise 
the BACs payment run 
with Zellis. 

b) In the interim, it should be 
considered that Bacs 
release payment 
authorisation forms sent 
between the councils and 
Zellis are protected with 
the agreed pre-
determined document 
password to mitigate the 
risk of fraud by 
misrepresentation, if 
accessed by unintended 
parties. 

c) Officers to consider 
applying password 

Interim Strategic 
Finance Manager 
 
 

Page 65

Agenda Item 7

mailto:hradminandpayroll@southandvale.gov.uk


however, is not currently sent securely 
or password protected, which may 
present a risk to data protection due to 
the sensitive personal information 
contained within. 
 
  
Risk(s)  
There is a risk to potential fraud by 
misrepresentation where personal 
information may be used to 
manipulate documentation for 
personal gain. 
There is a risk to the mishandling of 
personal data and GDPR where 
access to sensitive information is not 
suitably managed. 

protection/encryption to 
all personally identifiable 
information sent 
electronically to external 
contacts to enhance data 
protection controls. 
Access passwords to be 
sent separately. 

 

Management Response Implementation Due 
Date 

Recommendation is partially Agreed  
The ability to authorise payroll remotely online would be ideal and allow 
very secure authorisation. However this may well not currently be 
possible. 
 
As stated in the audit report: 
 
 ‘BACs release forms do not contain any sensitive personal information’ 
  
The risk of fraud by misrepresentation is considered to be minor.  
Submission of the bacs release form is the last action before the monthly 
payroll is paid. It’s crucial that the authoriser can submit the form and the 
payroll provider receive and action it without unnecessary security. The 
risk of payroll once checked and agreed being delayed and staff paid late 
must be absolutely minimal.    
 
 
Richard Spraggett, Strategic Finance Manager 

Will discuss with Zellis 
before 31 October 2021 
 

 
PAYROLL RECONCILIATION   

13. BACS payment approvals (Medium Risk) 

Rationale Recommended Action(s) Action Owner(s) 

Findings 
Per our review of SODC and VWHDC 
BACS Release Forms (payment 
authorisation sign-off) records for 
2020/2021, the following findings are 
noted: 

• Date errors were recorded on 19 
(30%) of the 62 Bacs release 
forms (eight SODC and 11 
VWHDC) reviewed within the 
sample for April 2020 to February 
2021. This was where the incorrect 
date was applied to the Bacs 
release form by Zellis, prior to 
being sent to the councils for 
review and authorisation; and 

• BACS release forms for June and 
July 2020 for both SODC and 
VWHDC had not been retained on 
file. 

 
Risk(s)  
Inaccuracy in supporting records does 
not provide assurance that suitable 

The interim strategic finance 
manager (or designate in 
absence) should be reminded 
to: 
a) Ensure correct dates are 

entered onto the Bacs 
Release Form submitted 
by Zellis to ensure an 
accurate audit trail; and  

b) Sign and date 
(electronically) the Bacs 
Release Form following 
review and approval, and 
ensure a copy is retained 
on the accountancy 
shared drive (payroll 
files). 
 

Interim Strategic 
Finance Manager 
 
 

Page 66

Agenda Item 7



checks have taken place and may 
cause issue in the event of a dispute. 

Management Response Implementation Due 
Date 

Recommendation is Agreed 
 
The forms from Zellis were defaulting to today’s date rather than the date 
of their submission. They have been told about this error.  However the 
date serves no purpose in relation to the actual sending of the bacs 
payroll payment to employees which will be 3 days before the 21st 
regardless. 
 
The BACS release forms for June July were submitted by the previous 
temporary Strategic Finance manager who has since left. All forms since 
have been retained.    
 
Richard Spraggett Strategic Finance Manager 

Immediately 
 
 

 
ESTABLISHMENT LISTINGS  

14. HR managed records (Low Risk) 

Rationale Recommended Action(s) Action Owner(s) 

Findings 
The HR payroll team have now 
developed their own Establishment 
Listings report, as a result of a 
significant labour-intensive piece of 
work. This is issued to service 
managers to review accuracy of their 
team’s details on a bi-monthly (every-
other-month) basis.  

Per discussion with the team, there are 
plans to explore the feasibility of 
integrating and updating the 
establishment listings within the payroll 
system (ResourceLink), making the 
lists more accessibility for service 
managers and to reduce the margin for 
error through the current manual 
process.  

Copies of monthly payroll reports are 
not currently distributed to heads of 
service/service managers to aid review 
and scrutiny of their service team 
payments. 

 
Risk(s)  
If the establishment list does not 
reconcile with the payroll, there is a 
risk of ghost employees being set up 
and paid, resulting in a financial loss 
to the council. 

a) Continue to explore 
developing system based 
automated Establishment 
List reports to aid service 
manager accessibility to 
review, manage and 
monitor their team 
structures against current 
posts and budget, and to 
reduce HR time spent 
administering these 
records. 

b) Consider distributing a 
suite of monthly payroll 
reports to HOS/service 
team managers to aid 
visibility in reviewing 
payments specific to their 
team and budget, 
preferably prior to 
authorising BACS 
payments.  

Strategic HR Manager 
 
 

Management Response Implementation Due 
Date 

Recommendation is Agreed 
 
Management response: N/A 

31 October 2021 
 
 

  

Page 67

Agenda Item 7



 

Page 68

Agenda Item 7



Joint Audit and Governance 

Committee  

 
Report of Interim Internal Audit Manager 

Author: Richard Green 

Telephone   01235 422430 

Textphone: 18001 01235 422430 

E-mail: Richard.green@southandvale.gov.uk 

SODC cabinet member responsible: Councillor Leigh Rawlins 

Tel: 01189 722565 

E-mail: leigh.rawlins@southoxon.gov.uk 

VWHDC cabinet member responsible: Councillor Andy Crawford 

Telephone: 01235 772134 

E-mail: andy.crawford@whitehorsedc.gov.uk 

 

To: Joint Audit and Governance Committee 

DATE: 28 September 2021 

Internal audit management report 

quarter two 2021/22 
  

Recommendation(s) 
 

(a) That members note the content of the report. 
 

 

Purpose of report 

1. The purpose of this report is: 

• to summarise the progress against the 2021/22 audit plan to 16 
September 2021;  

• to summarise the priorities for quarter three 2021/22. 
2. The contact officer for this report is Richard Green, Interim Internal Audit 

Manager for South Oxfordshire District Council (SODC) and Vale of White Horse 
District Council (VWHDC), telephone 07849 574860. 

 
 
 
 

Page 69

Agenda Item 8

mailto:Richard.green@southandvale.gov.uk


Strategic objectives 
 
3. Delivery of an effective internal audit function will support the councils in meeting 

their strategic objectives. 

 
 
Background  
 
4. The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS), effective from 1 April 2017, 

state that the head of internal audit should prepare a risk-based audit plan, which 
should outline the assignments to be carried out and the resource requirements 
to deliver the plan, for audit committee approval. The Joint Audit and 
Governance Committee approved the 2020/21 annual internal audit plan in July 
2020 and a subsequent amended plan in September that was compiled due to 
the impact of redeployment as result of Covid 19 pandemic. 

 
5. The PSIAS also states that the head of internal audit must periodically report on 

performance relative to the plan.   
 
 
Progress against the 2021/22 audit plan 

 
6. Progress against the original audit plan for 2021/22 is summarised in appendix 1 

attached.  
 

7. The final reports have been completed and issued for the last two reviews for 
2020/21 along with one follow-up review. 

 
8. For the 2021/22 plan four reviews are progressing towards draft stage and a 

further four are at fieldwork stage. 
 

9. The output in August was reduced due to staff sickness and annual leave being 
taken. 

 
10. Performance figures to date are as follows: 

 

 

Target YTD 

Actuals by Quarter 

Q1 
20/21 

Q2 
20/21 

Q3 
20/21 

Q4 
20/21 

Chargeable 
(identifiable client and/or specific 
IA deliverable) 

76.0 53.5 54.0 53.0   

Non-Chargeable  
(corporate, not IA deliverable) 

7.0 24.5 20.5 19.0   

Planned Lost 
(i.e. leave) 

14.5 18.0 21.5 15.0   

Unplanned Lost 
(i.e. study, sickness) 2.5 4.5 4.0 13.0   

 
 
11. As of 16 September 2021, the status of audit work against the 2021/22 audit plan 

is as follows: 
 

Page 70

Agenda Item 8



Planned  
Strategic, operational, and financial assurance work known and approved by 
the joint audit and governance committee.   

 

 

2021/22 Planned Completed Draft Out In progress Deferred 

Key Financial 10   1  

Operational 17   7  

Consultancy 6     

Total 33   8  

Joint 31     

SODC 1     

VWHDC 1     

 
Ad-hoc 
Unplanned project work based on agreed terms of reference with the audit 
manager (i.e., implementation of new systems) and responsive work issued 
and agreed by the section 151 officer, members, or senior management team 
(i.e., investigations). 

 

 

2021/22 Requested Complete Draft In progress 
To 

commence 

Ad-hoc 0 0 0 0 0 

Joint 0 0 0 0 0 

SODC 0 0 0 0 0 

VWHDC 0 0 0 0 0 

 
Follow up  
Work undertaken to ensure that agreed recommendations have been 
implemented.  The number of follow-up audits is a rolling number, all internal 
audit reports are followed up after six months unless the area is subject to an 
annual review. 

 

 
2021/22 Requested Complete Draft In progress 

To 
commence 

Follow up 0 1 0 0 0 

Joint 0 1 0 0 0 

SODC 0 0 0 0 0 

VWHDC 0  0 0 0 

 
 
Revisions to the Internal Audit Plan 2021/22 
 
12. The original plan has been revised to accommodate  

• requests by management to delay or amend start dates for some audits. 

• changes to scopes and coverage as a result of meetings with managers 
included a review of Covid 19 Grants 

 
13. The revised plan is included at Appendix 2a (Audit areas and days) and 2b (Audit 

scopes and start dates) for consideration. 

Page 71

Agenda Item 8



 
Priorities for 2021/22 quarter three (Oct to Dec 2021) 
 
14. The priorities for quarter three are to: 

• Continue to carry out the planned audits from the annual internal audit 
plan for 2021/22. 

• Monitor the recommendation tracker 
 
 

15. The 2021/22 planned work is included at appendices 3 
 
 
Financial implications 

16. There are no financial implications attached to this report. 
 
Legal implications 

17. There are no legal implications attached to this report. 
 
Climate & ecological implications 

18. There are no climate & ecological implications attached to this report. 
 
Risk implications 

19. Identification of risk is an integral part of all audits. 
 
Other Implications 

18 None 
 
 

 
Richard Green 

INTERIM INTERNAL AUDIT MANAGER

Page 72

Agenda Item 8



PROGRESS AGAINST PLANNED AUDITS 2021/2022         APPENDIX 1 
Audit Area Status 

A
u

d
it

 
A

ll
o

c
a
ti

o

n
 

T
o

ta
l 

D
a
y
s
 

U
s
e
d

 Exception 
Issues 

Audit Opinion 

N
o

. 
o

f 

R
e
c
s
 

H
ig

h
 

N
o

. 
A

g
re

e
d

 

M
e

d
iu

m
 

N
o

. 

A
g

re
e
d

 

L
o

w
 

N
o

. 
A

g
re

e
d

 

T
o

ta
l 

N
o

t 

A
g

re
e
d

 

  

As at 16 September 2021 

KEY FINANCIAL AUDITS 
Capital Management & Accounting (16) To Commence                         

SODC 7.5 0.0   Not yet applicable                 

VWHDC 7.5 0.0   Not yet applicable                 

Council Tax (20) To Commence                         

SODC 10 0.0   Not yet applicable                 

VWHDC 10 0.0   Not yet applicable                 

Creditor Payments (20) In Progress                         

SODC 10 2.0   Not yet applicable                 

VWHDC     10 1.5   Not yet applicable                 

General Ledger (19) To Commence                         

SODC 5 0.0   Not yet applicable                 

VWHDC 5 0.0   Not yet applicable                 

Housing Benefits & Council Tax Reduction 
Scheme (20) 

To Commence                         

SODC 10 0.0   Not yet applicable                 

VWHDC 10 0.0   Not yet applicable                 

National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR) To Commence                         

SODC 7.5 0.0   Not yet applicable                 

VWHDC 7.5 0.0   Not yet applicable                 

Payroll (incl. Travel & Subsistence, Pension 
Administration, Annual Leave Payments) (22) 

To Commence                         

SODC 15 0.0   Not yet applicable                 

VWHDC 15 0.0   Not yet applicable                 

Pro-Active Anti-Fraud Review (19) To Commence                           

SODC   10 0.0   Not yet applicable                 

VWHDC   10 0.0   Not yet applicable                 

Sundry Debtors To Commence                         

SODC 10 0.0   Not yet applicable                 

VWHDC 10 0.0   Not yet applicable                 

Treasury Management (18) To Commence                         

SODC 10 0.0   Not yet applicable                 

VWHDC 10 0.0   Not yet applicable                 

Brown Bins To Commence                         

SODC 7.5 0.0 Not yet applicable                 

VWHDC 7.5 0.0 Not yet applicable                 

P
age 73

A
genda Item

 8



Audit Area Status 

A
u

d
it

 
A

ll
o

c
a
ti

o

n
 

T
o

ta
l 

D
a
y
s
 

U
s
e
d

 Exception 
Issues 

Audit Opinion 

N
o

. 
o

f 

R
e
c
s
 

H
ig

h
 

N
o

. 
A

g
re

e
d

 

M
e

d
iu

m
 

N
o

. 

A
g

re
e
d

 

L
o

w
 

N
o

. 
A

g
re

e
d

 

T
o

ta
l 

N
o

t 

A
g

re
e
d

 

  

As at 16 September 2021 

Car Parking & Enforcement In Progress                         

SODC 5 1.5 Not yet applicable                 

VWHDC 5 1.5 Not yet applicable                 

Postal Cheques In Progress                         

SODC 7.5 6.5 Not yet applicable                 

VWHDC 7.5 6.5 Not yet applicable                 

Contract Management In Progress                         

SODC 10 8.0 Not yet applicable                 

VWHDC 10 7.0 Not yet applicable                 

Council Fees and Charges In Progress                         

SODC 10 7.0 Not yet applicable                 

VWHDC 10 6.5 Not yet applicable                 

Development Management To Commence                         

SODC 10 0.0 Not yet applicable                 

VWHDC 10 0.0 Not yet applicable                 

Estates & Facilities Management To Commence                         

SODC 10 0.0 Not yet applicable                 

VWHDC 10 0.0 Not yet applicable                 

Information Governance To Commence                         

SODC 10 0.0 Not yet applicable                 

VWHDC 10 0.0 Not yet applicable                 

IT Operations To Commence                         

SODC 10 0.0 Not yet applicable                 

VWHDC 10 0.0 Not yet applicable                 

Land Charges In Progress                         

SODC 10 1.0 Not yet applicable                 

VWHDC 10 1.0 Not yet applicable                 

Neighbourhood Planning Grants To Commence                         

SODC 10 0.0 Not yet applicable                 

VWHDC 10 0.0 Not yet applicable                 

Planning Enforcement To Commence                         

SODC 10 0.0 Not yet applicable                 

VWHDC 10 0.0 Not yet applicable                 

Planning Appeals In Progress                         

SODC 10 3.0 Not yet applicable                 

VWHDC 10 3.0 Not yet applicable                 

P
age 74

A
genda Item

 8



Audit Area Status 

A
u

d
it

 
A

ll
o

c
a
ti

o

n
 

T
o

ta
l 

D
a
y
s
 

U
s
e
d

 Exception 
Issues 

Audit Opinion 

N
o

. 
o

f 

R
e
c
s
 

H
ig

h
 

N
o

. 
A

g
re

e
d

 

M
e

d
iu

m
 

N
o

. 

A
g

re
e
d

 

L
o

w
 

N
o

. 
A

g
re

e
d

 

T
o

ta
l 

N
o

t 

A
g

re
e
d

 

  

As at 16 September 2021 

Property Management In Progress                         

SODC 10 4.0 Not yet applicable                 

VWHDC 10 4.0 Not yet applicable                 

Receipt & collection of Income To Commence                         

SODC 7.5 0.0 Not yet applicable                 

VWHDC 7.5 0.0 Not yet applicable                 

Section 106/CIL To Commence                         

SODC 5 0.0 Not yet applicable                 

VWHDC 5 0.0 Not yet applicable                 

Whistleblowing To Commence                         

SODC 5 0.0 Not yet applicable                 

VWHDC 5 0.0 Not yet applicable                 

PLANNED CONSULTANCY AUDITS 
Cornerstone To Commence                         

SODC 7 0.0 Not yet applicable                 

Corporate Landlord Approach To Commence                         

SODC 10 0.0 Not yet applicable                 

VWHDC 10 0.0 Not yet applicable                 

Didcot Community Facilities To Commence                         

SODC 5 0.0 Not yet applicable                 

VWHDC 5 0.0 Not yet applicable                 

Disposal of Assets & property To Commence                         

SODC 5 0.0 Not yet applicable                 

VWHDC 5 0.0 Not yet applicable                 

The Beacon To Commence                         

VWHDC 7 0.0 Not yet applicable                 

Covid 19 Grants To Commence                         

SODC 10 0.0 Not yet applicable                 

VWHDC 10 0.0 Not yet applicable                 

JOINT PLANNED AUDIT TOTALS   5 64.0     0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Completed 0 Full 0 

Draft Out 0 Substantial 0 

In Progress 8 Satisfactory 0 

Deferred 0 Limited 0 

P
age 75

A
genda Item

 8



Revised Internal Audit Plan 2021/2022            APPENDIX  2a 

 

No. Service Area Audit Area 
Priority 
Score 

SODC 
Days 

VWHDC 
Days 

1 Finance Payroll (Full systems review including Travel & Subsistence) 22 15 15 

2 Creditor Payments 20 10 10 

3 Council Tax 20 10 10 

4 General Ledger 18 5 5 

5 Sundry Debtors 19 10 10 

6 National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR) 20 7.5 7.5 

7 Capital Management and Accounting 16 7.5 7.5 

8 Pro-Active Anti-Fraud Review 19 2.5 2.5 

9 Treasury Management 18 2.5 2.5 

10 Housing Benefits (HB) and Council Tax Reduction Scheme (CTRS) 20 10 10 

11 Contract Management (including Corporate Delivery) 19 15 15 

12 Council Fees and Charges 16 10 10 

13 Procurement (including Corporate Delivery) 19 10 10 

14  Receipt & collection of Income 15 7.5 7.5 

15 Development & Regeneration Estates and Facilities Management 17 10 10 

16  Section 106/CIL (to include Planning) 15 5 5 

17  Property Management 17 10 10 

18 Planning Planning Enforcement 15 10 10 

19 Planning Applications 15 10 10 

20  Planning Appeals 15 10 10 

21 Housing & Environment Brown Bins (to include Finance & Corporate Services) 16 7.5 7.5 

22  Car Parking & Enforcement 12 5 5 

23 Legal Services Land Charges 11 10 10 

24 Corporate Services Cash Offices/Reception 14 7.5 7.5 

25 Information Governance 11 10 10 

26 IT Operations 20 10 10 

27  Whistleblowing & Fraud  5 5 

Planned Assurance Work Total Days 232.5 232.5 

 
 

P
age 76

A
genda Item

 8



No. Service Area Audit Area 
Priority 
Score 

SODC 
Days 

VWHDC 
Days 

28 Consultancy Cornerstone  7 0 

29 Didcot Community Facilities  5 5 

30 The Beacon   7 

31  Corporate Landlord  5 5 

32  Disposal of Assets & Property  5 5 

33  Covid 19 Grants  10 10 

Planned Consultancy Work Total Days 32 32 

 

  

P
age 77

A
genda Item

 8



Audit Coverage and Start Dates             APPENDIX 2b 

 

No. Audit Area Proposed Audit Coverage 
Proposed Start Date 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 

1 Payroll  

• Systems review and verification of key controls 

• Amendments to standing data (starters, leavers, overtime, variations). 

• Monthly payroll processing. 
 

  Oct  

2 Creditor Payments 

• Systems review and verification of key controls 

• Invoice and refunds processing. 

• Duplicate suppliers and payments. 

• Manual, direct debit and BACS payment transactions. 

 Sep   

3 Council Tax 

• Liabilities, including discounts and exemptions. 

• Payments, credits, refunds, and suspense transactions. 

• Recovery, enforcement, and write-offs.  

  Oct  

4 General Ledger 

• Key Controls update 

• Suspense account balances and transactions. 

• Journal transfers, including authorisation and documentation. 

  Nov  

5 Sundry Debtors 

• Systems review and verification of key controls 

• Invoice processing, including periodic invoices. 

• Recovery, aged debts, cancellations and write offs. 

• Invoice suppressions. 

  Oct  

6 
National Non-Domestic 
Rates (NNDR) 

• Review of Key Controls. 

• Valuation records for new and amended properties. 

• NNDR billing, payment, and refund transactions. 

• Debt recovery and write offs. 

  Oct  

7 
Capital Management 
and Accounting 

• Capital financial strategy and asset management plan. 

• Capital contracts and budget monitoring. 

• Completeness and accuracy of asset register, including reconciliations. 

  Dec  

8 
Pro-Active Anti-Fraud 
Review 

• Series of tests designed to evaluate the effectiveness of fraud and anti-corruption 
controls within key financial processes.  

  Oct  

9 Treasury Management 

• Investments and borrowings (including authorisation, counterparty limits, coding). 

• Treasury management performance. 

• Access level controls within treasury management and banking systems. 

   Jan 

10 
Housing Benefits and 
Council Tax Reduction 
Scheme  

• Housing benefits and CTRS payments. 

• Benefits assessments and subsidy claims. 

• Benefit overpayments. 

  Dec  

 

 

P
age 78

A
genda Item

 8



 

No. Audit Area Proposed Audit Coverage 
Proposed Start Date 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 

11 Contract Management 

• Completeness and accuracy of contracts register. 

• Contract renewals process. 

• Contract performance monitoring. 

• Detailed review of significant and/or high value contracts.  

 Jul   

12 Council Fees & Charges 
• Evaluate whether council fees and charges are maximised across service areas 

• Completeness and timeliness of collection of fees and charges. 
Jun    

13 Procurement 

• Review of the arrangements for procuring goods and service 

• Tender process 

• Local procurement 

 Jul   

14 
Receipt & collection of 
Income 

• Arrangements for receiving payments 

• Receipting and banking processes. 

• Recording and reconciling income. 

   Jan 

15 
Estates & Facilities 
Management 

• Recharging of facilities/property related costs to tenants of council owned 
properties. 

• Management of facilities and spaces 
  Nov  

16 Section 106/CIL • Review of the Section 106/CIL arrangements.    Jan 

17 Property Management • Review of management and administration of property.  Au
g 

  

18 Planning Enforcement • Review of the arrangements for managing and monitoring developments    Jan 

19 Planning Applications  
• Review of the arrangements for managing and monitoring planning applications 

and developments 
  Dec  

20 Planning Appeals • Review of the arrangements for managing and monitoring planning appeals   Oct  

21 Brown Bins • Review of arrangements for management and income collection for brown bins.   Oct  

22 Car Parking Enforcement 
• Review of arrangements for management and income collection for parking and 

penalties. 
 Se

p 
  

23 Land Charges • Review of arrangements for managing the arrangement for land charges.  
Se
p   

24 Cash Offices/ Reception 
• Review of updated cash handling procedures and arrangements 

• Review of reception duties and security. 
Jun    

25 Information Governance 

• Information governance framework, policies, and procedures. 

• Handling, location, and transfer of data across the councils and with third parties. 

• Review of information governance arrangements with third parties. 

   Feb 

26 IT Operations 
• Review of logical access, change management and IT operations controls across 

council IT systems. 
   Jan 

27 
Whistle blowing and 
Fraud 

• Review of the arrangements and activities in relation to whistleblowing and frauds   Nov  

  

P
age 79

A
genda Item

 8



No. Audit Area Proposed Audit Coverage 
Proposed Start Date 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 

28 Cornerstone • Review effectiveness of processes and procedures, as agreed with management.    Jan 

29 Didcot Community Gardens 
• Review effectiveness of processes and procedures, as agreed with 

management. 
   Feb 

30 The Beacon • Review effectiveness of processes and procedures, as agreed with 
management 

   Feb 

31 Corporate Landlord • Assessment of the project to centralise the management of council assets.   Nov  

32 Disposal of assets & 
Property • Review of the arrangements and process for disposals of assets.   Dec  

33 Covid 19 Grants 

• All types of COVID-19 grants (business, discretionary and councillor) and 
funding are processed and approved appropriately. 

• Any appeals against any decisions have been dealt with properly and 
approved. 

• Any incorrect payments are dealt with properly. 

  Oct  

 

 

  

P
age 80

A
genda Item

 8



 
AUDIT PLAN 
SCHEDULE 2021/22   As at 16 September 2021             APPENDIX 3 
Key:                                         
Key financial audit                                         
Projected Start Date                                         
In Progress                                         
Draft Out                                         
Completed                                         
No longer applicable/ revised 
arrangements                                         
Confidential                                         

PLANNED AUDITS                                          

2021/22 JOINT AUDITS 
July August September October November December January February March 

3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 

J
A

G
C

 

4 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 

J
A

G
C

 

4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 

J
A

G
C

 

5 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 

J
A

G
C

 

4 

Payroll                                              

 S
h

u
td

o
w

n
 

                          

Creditor Payments                                                                      

Council Tax                                                                       

General Ledger                                                                      

Sundry Debtors                                                                      

National Non-Domestic 
Rates (NNDR)                                                

    

                  

Capital Management and 
Accounting                                                 

    

                  

Pro-Active Anti-Fraud 
Review                                                 

    

                  

Treasury Management                                                                       

Housing Benefits and 
Council Tax Reduction 
Scheme                                                  

    

                  

Contract Management                                                                       

Council Fees & Charges                                                                       

Procurement                                                                       

Receipt & Collection of 
Income                                                 

    

                  

Estates & Facilities 
Management                                                 

    

                  

Section 106/CIL                                                                       

Property Management                                                                       

P
age 81

A
genda Item

 8



2021/22 JOINT AUDITS July August September October November December January February March 

          

J
A

G
C

 

         

J
A

G
C

 

    

S
h

u
td

o
w

n
 

    

J
A

G
C

 

        

J
A

G
C

 

 

Planning Enforcement                                                                       

Planning Applications                                                                       

Planning Appeals                                                                       

Brown Bins                                                                       

Car Parking & Enforcement                                                                       

Cash Offices/ Reception                                                                       

Land Charges                                                                       

Information Governance                                                                       

IT Operations                                                                       

Whistleblowing & Fraud                                                                       
 

         

 

         

 

    

 

  

   

        

 

 
PLANNED CONSULTANCY                                         

JOINT 

July August September October November December January February March 

3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 

J
A

G
C

 

4 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 

J
A

G
C

 

4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 

J
A

G
C

 

5 1 2 3 4 1 2 3  4 

Cornerstone                                             

S
h

u
td

o
w

n
 

                           

Didcot Community Gardens                                                                     J A G C
 

  

The Beacon                                                                        

Corporate Landlord                                                                        

Disposal of Assets and 
property                                                 

    
                

 

  

Covid 19 Grants                                                                        

                                                                                  

          

 

         

 

    

 

  

   

        

 

 
FOLLOW UP AUDITS                                         

JOINT 
Jul
y August September October November December January February March 

  3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 

J
A

G
C

 

4 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 

J
A

G
C

 

4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 

J
A

G
C

 

5 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 

J
A

G
C

 

4 

                                              

 S
h

u
td

o
w

n
 

                          

                                                                        

SODC                                                                       

                                                                        

VWHDC                                                                       

                                                                        

 

P
age 82

A
genda Item

 8



 

 1 

 

Joint Audit and Governance 

Committee  

 
Report of Interim Internal Audit Manager 

Author:  Richard Green 

Telephone: 01235 422430 

Textphone: 18001 01235 422430 

E-mail: richard.green@southandvale.gov.uk 

SODC cabinet member responsible: Councillor Leigh Rawlins 

Tel: 01189 722565 

E-mail: leigh.rawlins@southoxon.gov.uk 

VWHDC cabinet member responsible: Councillor Andy Crawford 

Telephone: 01235 772134 

E-mail: andy.crawford@whitehorsedc.gov.uk 

 

To: Joint Audit and Governance Committee 

DATE: 28 September 2021 

 

Internal Audit – Progress Update 

Recommendations Implementation–  

Recommendation(s) 

(a) That members note the content of the report 

(b) Review and agree to the actions and recommendations made 

 

Page 83

Agenda Item 9

mailto:richard.green@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:andy.crawford@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


 

 2 

 

Purpose of Report 

1. The purpose of this report is to provide an update on the progress with the 
Implementation of audit recommendations to date. 

2. The contact officer for this report is Richard Green, Interim Internal Audit 
Manager for South Oxfordshire District Council (SODC) and Vale of White Horse 
District Council (VWHDC), telephone 01235  422430. 

Strategic Objectives  

3. Delivery of an effective internal audit function will support the councils in meeting 
their strategic objectives. 

Background 

4. Internal Audit have utilised a database to record and monitor recommendations 
made in each report. The database sends out automated reminders to relevant 
responsible officers based on dates of implementation. Officers should update 
relevant fields with narrative and any revised dates so that the internal audit 
team can review and amend the status as appropriate. 

5. An exercise has been carried out to review the database and examine the status 
of recommendations that remained “open” for several years. 

Work Performed and Findings 
 
6. A report was run against the database to extract all recommendations from 

2013/2014 onwards. By downloading this into a spreadsheet the data was able 
to be analysed by year, rating and audit. 

7. The initial report gave a total of 1253 recommendations made since 2013/2014 
with 526 still open as at April 2021 shown in tables below. 

8. On reviewing the open recommendations, it became clear that many should in 
fact have been closed, but the system and approach using e-mails and 
responsible officer (and auditors) had allowed them to be missed. For some the 
responsible officers had changed posts or left, so that the e-mails hadn’t had the 
desired impact or response. Similarly, there had been changes in the Internal 
Audit Team so that responses and feedback was missed. 

9. A number of recommendations were found to have been restated in following 
audits and reports but the previous recommendations remained open.  Changes 
to the internal audit personnel also meant that similar recommendations that had 
previously been made were not closed off or removed from the database.  

Analysis 
 
10. The original extract from the database gave the following figures  

 
 

Page 84

Agenda Item 9



 

 3 

 

Total recommendations made by year 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Initial open recommendations by year  

 Total High Medium Low 

2013/14 3   1 2 

2014/15 7 4 3   

2015/16 48 9 35 4 

2016/17 40 18 16 6 

2017/18 39 1 10 28 

Sub Total 137 32 65 40 

2018/19 90 13 37 40 

2019/20 176 30 90 56 

2020/21 123 17 60 35 

Sub Total 389 60 187 131 

Overall 
Totals 

526 92 252 171 

 
11. After the recommendations were revised and closed where appropriate the open 

recommendations are now 

 Total High Medium Low 

2013/14 2  1 1 

2014/15 1  1  
2015/16 21 8 11 2 

2016/17 6 3 2 1 

2017/18 5  1 4 

Sub Total 35 11 16 8 

2018/19 66 10 28 28 

2019/20 109 16 56 37 

2020/21 112 17 60 35 

Sub Total 287 43 144 100 

Overall 
Totals 322 54 160 108 

 Total High Medium Low 

2013/14 72 4 38 30 

2014/15 113 22 33 58 

2015/16 267 46 128 93 

2016/17 160 47 71 42 

2017/18 148 11 61 76 

Sub Total 760 130 331 299 

2018/19 160 31 61 68 

2019/20 210 32 106 72 

2020/21 123 17 68 38 

Sub Total 493 80 235 178 

Overall 
Totals 

1253 210 566 477 

Page 85

Agenda Item 9



 

 4 

 

12. For the years 2013 to 2018 there were 760 recommendations raised of which 
were initially 137 remained open. After this review there are only 35 
recommendations that remain outstanding of which 11 are rated as high risk.  
These eleven are shown at Appendix 1.  

13. These recommendations should have been followed up and actions taken 
previously but due to the various reasons mentioned above they were not. 

14. Rather than raise the recommendations with the current managers (some of 
whom have since taken over and may be unaware of the recommendations or 
issues raised) we seek approval to write them off. We will of course retain them 
separately for consideration at any future audits.  This will allow the database to 
be cleansed and for better use of the details going forward. 

15. For the period 2018 to 2020 a total of 493 recommendations were raised with 
206 closed and 287 remaining open.  

Recommended Actions 
 
16. It is recommended that the Joint Audit and Governance Committee approve the 

following action: 

• the remaining open recommendations for the audits prior to 2017/2018 are 
removed from the database but are retained on a separate record for 
reference in any similar future audits. This will allow the database to be 
more accurate. 

• Managers will be reminded of the need to update the recommendations as 
necessary. 

• The Internal audit team to monitor and use reports from the database to 
identify and follow up outstanding recommendations on a regular basis. 

 

Financial Implications 

17. There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. 

Legal Implications 

18. There are no direct legal implications arising from this report. 

Climate & ecological implications 
 
19. There are no climate & ecological implications attached to this report 

Risks 

20. None identified 

Other Implications 

21. None  

Page 86

Agenda Item 9



 

 5 

 

Recommendations proposed for closing off the database       Appendix 1  
  

Rec 
ID 

Audit 
Name 

Audit 
Year 

Head of 
Service 

Service 
Manager 

Recomme
ndation 
Name 

Recommendation Rationale Risk 
Rati
ng 

Management Response Implem
entation 
date 

Officer 
Responsi
ble 

Auditor 
Respon
sible 

381 Partners
hip 
Perform
ance 
Monitori
ng 

2015/2
016 

Andrew 
Down (Head 
of HR, IT & 
Technical 
Services) 

Sally 
Truman 
(Policy, 
Partnershi
p & 
Engageme
nt 
Manager) 

1. 
Partnershi
p 
guidance 

a) The council¿s partnership 
guidance should be updated, 
implemented and shared across 
all council services. 
b) The revised partnership 
guidance should have the 
following areas added to the 
guidance: 
i. Introduction which includes 
framework, purpose and 
structure 
ii. Benefits and risks of 
partnership working 
iii. The formal/informal 
partnership definitions 
iv. Risk assessment procedure 
of partnerships 
v. Tools for evaluating 
partnership resource 
requirements  
vi. Key council roles and 
responsibilities 
vii. Governance framework 
viii. Partnership agreement 
template 
ix. Partnerships checklist  
x. Risk register template 
xi. Case studies 
xii. Further resources of help 
xiii. Where to go for further 
information. 
xiv. Information that should be 
reported regularly to the 
council¿s nominated 
partnerships officer. 
c) Partnerships that are not in 
line with the council¿s objective 
should be investigated further to 
evaluate whether or not the 
partnership should be 
discontinued. 
d) There should be sufficient 
evidence to show that the 
guidance is: 
i. suitably agreed and 

Best Practice 
A uniform rationale is 
in place for defining, 
identifying, managing 
and evaluating 
partnerships to ensure 
they are in-line with 
the council¿s 
priorities, are 
consistent and have 
adequate resources. 
 
Findings 
A partnership 
guidance document 
titled ¿Best practice 
guide to partnership 
working¿ for SODC 
and VWHDC had not 
been piloted when it 
was originally 
compiled in 2009.  The 
guidance does not 
clearly state how the 
partnerships should 
support the council¿s 
strategic priorities.   
It was also identified 
that the council¿s two 
partnerships selected 
by internal audit for 
testing conform to the 
majority but not all of 
the ¿best practice 
guide to partnership 
working¿. For 
example, there were 
no signed partnership 
agreements retained 
in the partnerships 
tested. 
There is no clear 
definition to distinguish 
formal and informal 
partnerships in the 

High Recommendation is Agreed in 
principle 
Since the original 2010 audit 
and follow up audit in 2012 
were carried out, and in 
response to the statutory 
changes in relation to 
partnership working on a 
strategic level, the way in 
which the council manages 
partnerships has changed.  
Management is now delegated 
to individual heads of 
service/service managers, the 
number of partnerships the 
council is involved in has 
reduced considerably and 
there is no longer a need for 
an extensive corporate co-
ordination role. 
 
It is the responsibility of 
individual heads of service to 
ensure that partnerships their 
teams are involved in are in 
line with council objectives, 
have clear governance and 
reporting structures in place, 
and that any risks for the 
council are managed 
appropriately. 
 
T 

30/06/20
16 

Sally 
Truman 
(Policy, 
Partnershi
p & 
Engageme
nt 
Manager) 

Nilesh 
Parmar 

P
age 87

A
genda Item

 9



 

 6 

 

Recommendations proposed for closing off the database       Appendix 1  
  

Rec 
ID 

Audit 
Name 

Audit 
Year 

Head of 
Service 

Service 
Manager 

Recomme
ndation 
Name 

Recommendation Rationale Risk 
Rati
ng 

Management Response Implem
entation 
date 

Officer 
Responsi
ble 

Auditor 
Respon
sible 

authorised; 
 
ii. regularly reviewed and 
updated by the relevant officer; 
iii. available to all relevant 
internal and external 
stakeholders; 
iv. clear in requiring identification 
of how partnerships can support 
the council¿s strategic priorities. 
e) An appropriate action plan 
template should be added to the 
partnership guidance to ensure 
that the council¿s governance 
arrangements for partnerships 
are benchmarked accordingly 
and measured against best 
practice on a regular basis. 
f) The council should provide 
training to partnership lead 
officers on what constitutes a 
strategic outcome so that they 
can be identified and evidenced 
in individual partnerships. 

council and there is no 
documented guidance 
or procedure for 
informal partnerships. 
The partnership 
guidance has not been 
allocated to an officer 
to ensure that it is 
reviewed and kept up 
to date. 
There is no evidence 
of a benchmarking 
exercise for 
partnerships. 
There is no clear 
outline documented in 
the guidance of how 
partnerships need to 
evidence their agreed 
outcomes are being 
achieved and 
monitored adequately.  
 
Risk 
The partnership 
guidance may not be 
fit for purpose.  
Council employees 
may also enter into 
partnerships that are 
not in line with the 
council priorities.  
Partnerships may be 
conducted 
inconsistently. 

P
age 88

A
genda Item

 9



 

 7 

 

Recommendations proposed for closing off the database       Appendix 1  
  

Rec 
ID 

Audit 
Name 

Audit 
Year 

Head of 
Service 

Service 
Manager 

Recomme
ndation 
Name 

Recommendation Rationale Risk 
Rati
ng 

Management Response Implem
entation 
date 

Officer 
Responsi
ble 

Auditor 
Respon
sible 

382 Partners
hips 
perform
ance 
monitori
ng 

2015/2
016 

Andrew 
Down (Head 
of HR, IT & 
Technical 
Services) 

Sally 
Truman 
(Policy, 
Partnershi
p & 
Engageme
nt 
Manager) 

2. 
Partnershi
ps¿ 
register 

he council should implement a 
central register of all 
partnerships that the council¿s 
involved in and make this 
available to internal and external 
stakeholders.   
b) The central register should 
ensure that all partnerships are 
recorded, monitored, updated 
and controlled sufficiently by an 
officer assigned as responsible 
for maintaining the register. 
c) The central register should 
include the following details: 
i. date partnership was added to 
register, 
ii. name of the partnership, 
iii. type of partnership (formal or 
informal) 
iv.lead officer, 
v. council service/section, 
vi. number/name of other 
partners, 
vii. purpose of partnership, 
viii. date of last annual return, 
ix. date partnership ends, 
x. key objectives, 
xi. resource requirements, 
xii. number of meetings per year. 

Best Practice 
 
The council can 
adequately monitor all 
partnerships centrally. 
 
Findings 
Internal audit identified 
that there is currently 
no central register or a 
mechanism in place to 
ensure that all 
partnerships are 
captured or listed.   
 
 
 
Risk 
 
Officers and 
councillors not aware 
of the council¿s 
participation in its 
partnerships leading to 
potential opportunities 
being missed and 
actions being 
uncoordinated or 
contradictory. 

High Recommendation is Agreed 
 
We will develop a central 
register of partnerships to be 
published on the intranet (with 
relevant partnerships 
published to the website), and 
this will be updated annually. 

31/03/20
16 

Sally 
Truman 
(Policy, 
Partnershi
p & 
Engageme
nt 
Manager) 

Nilesh 
Parmar 

P
age 89

A
genda Item

 9



 

 8 

 

Recommendations proposed for closing off the database       Appendix 1  
  

Rec 
ID 

Audit 
Name 

Audit 
Year 

Head of 
Service 

Service 
Manager 

Recomme
ndation 
Name 

Recommendation Rationale Risk 
Rati
ng 

Management Response Implem
entation 
date 

Officer 
Responsi
ble 

Auditor 
Respon
sible 

397 HR 
Recruit
ment  

2015/2
016 

Adrianna 
Partridge 
(Interim 
Head of 
Corporate 
Services) 

Adrianna 
Partridge 
(Interim 
Head of 
Corporate 
Services) 

4. 
Disclosure 
Barring 
Service 
(DBS) 
checks 

DBS checks and disclosures 
should be undertaken for all 
posts that require a one in a 
timely manner.  Internal audit 
would also recommend that is 
undertaken prior to the 
commencement of their 
employment. 

Best PracticeAll posts 
that are deemed to 
warrant a DBS check 
is undertaken in a 
timely manner and 
prior to 
commencement of 
their employment. F 

High Recommendation is Agreed in 
PrincipleThe HR business 
support team will ensure that:¿ 
they review the recruitment 
process to make sure there 
are no gaps in the procedure¿ 
they check lettings and 
housing needs team have all 
received DBS checks, and 
carry out any which are 
missing.Casual assistant duty 
manager - leisure centre:I do 
not agree that a DBS check is 
required for the casual 
assistant duty manager, 
whose role at the Beacon 
Leisure Centre does not meet 
the eligibility 
criteria.Accelerated housing 
and development 
manager:This role is a 
strategic one and does not 
involve frequent interaction 
with children or vulnerable 
adults.  A meeting with a 
community group is not an 
activity which needs a DBS 
check.  The role is not eligible 
for a DBS check and I do not 
agree this part of the 
recommendation.Management 
response: Head of HR, IT and 
Technical Services 

31/07/20
16 

Marcia 
Slater 
(Business 
Support 
Manager) 

Fiona 
Kaluza 

P
age 90

A
genda Item

 9



 

 9 

 

Recommendations proposed for closing off the database       Appendix 1  
  

Rec 
ID 

Audit 
Name 

Audit 
Year 

Head of 
Service 

Service 
Manager 

Recomme
ndation 
Name 

Recommendation Rationale Risk 
Rati
ng 

Management Response Implem
entation 
date 

Officer 
Responsi
ble 

Auditor 
Respon
sible 

452 Project 
Manage
ment 

2015/2
016 

Adrian 
Duffield 
(Head of 
Planning) 

Sandra 
Wildern 
(Team 
Leader 
Building 
Control) 

2. Project 
Managem
ent Toolkit 

A full review and relaunch of the 
councils¿ project management 
toolkit should be undertaken. 

Best Practice 
Any guidance or 
framework must be 
regularly reviewed and 
amended to ensure it 
is fit for purpose. 
 
Findings 
There is no evidence 
of the project 
management toolkit 
having been reviewed 
since it was launched 
in 2012, despite the 
expectation that it 
would be reviewed 
after six months. A 
review now is 
important as the 
following 
improvements have 
been identified: 
¿ Definition of level of 
project could be 
improved. 
¿ Guidance on 
intranet to be correctly 
hyperlinked. 
¿ Include the 
requirement for Terms 
of Reference for each 
project board. 
¿Options appraisals to 
be conducted by 
procurement for all 
projects involving any 
procurement. 
¿ Use of dedicated 
project software that 
can respond to task 
dependencies and 
change, as well 
identifying the critical 
path. 
¿ Include in the project 

High Recommendation is Agreed 
 
This work forms part of the 
Project Management Software 
and Systems Project that 
commences on 3 May 2016. It 
completes in mid-September 
and will lead to a growth bid 
for the resources needed to 
ensure project management is 
instilled as an essential 
discipline. 
 
Management response:  Anna 
Robinson, strategic director 
 
 
Management response: Anna 
Robinson, strategic director 

01/04/20
17 

Sandra 
Wildern 
(Team 
Leader 
Building 
Control) 

Sandy 
Bayley 

P
age 91

A
genda Item

 9



 

 10 

 

Recommendations proposed for closing off the database       Appendix 1  
  

Rec 
ID 

Audit 
Name 

Audit 
Year 

Head of 
Service 

Service 
Manager 

Recomme
ndation 
Name 

Recommendation Rationale Risk 
Rati
ng 

Management Response Implem
entation 
date 

Officer 
Responsi
ble 

Auditor 
Respon
sible 

reports delays, 
reasons for them, 
amended dates, 
remedial action. 
 
¿ Follow up on 
previous overdue 
actions to ensure 
completed. 
 
¿ Consistent approach 
to recording risks in 
the risk register. 
 
Risk 
 
Failure to ensure a 
current and consistent 
approach will lead to 
inconsistencies 
between projects and 
local practices 
developing, in turn 
leading to poor 
decision making, poor 
governance, financial 
and reputational loss. 

P
age 92

A
genda Item

 9



 

 11 

 

Recommendations proposed for closing off the database       Appendix 1  
  

Rec 
ID 

Audit 
Name 

Audit 
Year 

Head of 
Service 

Service 
Manager 

Recomme
ndation 
Name 

Recommendation Rationale Risk 
Rati
ng 

Management Response Implem
entation 
date 

Officer 
Responsi
ble 

Auditor 
Respon
sible 

454 Project 
Manage
ment 

2015/2
016 

Adrian 
Duffield 
(Head of 
Planning) 

Sandra 
Wildern 
(Team 
Leader 
Building 
Control) 

4. Project 
register 

A review of the projects register 
is undertaken immediately, and 
the correct status of project and 
project managers recorded. 
Furthermore a system of regular 
reviews be introduced to ensure 
the currency is retained. 

Best PracticeAll 
approved projects 
should be recorded on 
a central projects 
register with relevant 
details and be updated 
regularly to ensure it is 
current.FindingsThe 
council maintains a 
register of all projects 
in progress. This 
showed 87 projects of 
which 56 should have 
been completed by the 
time of this review. 
Furthermore of the 87 
projects there were 16 
with named project 
managers who had left 
the employment of the 
council.RiskFailure to 
ensure the project 
register is accurate 
and current will lead to 
a lack of oversight on 
projects and resource 
decisions being based 
on inaccurate 
information. 

High Recommendation is 
AgreedHeads of service, 
overseen by the corporate 
management team will ensure 
the project register is updated, 
all cancelled projects 
removed, all columns correctly 
completed and a quarterly 
review system put in 
placeManagement response:  
Anna Robinson, strategic 
director 

31/07/20
16 

Sandra 
Wildern 
(Team 
Leader 
Building 
Control) 

Sandy 
Bayley 

P
age 93

A
genda Item

 9



 

 12 

 

Recommendations proposed for closing off the database       Appendix 1  
  

Rec 
ID 

Audit 
Name 

Audit 
Year 

Head of 
Service 

Service 
Manager 

Recomme
ndation 
Name 

Recommendation Rationale Risk 
Rati
ng 

Management Response Implem
entation 
date 

Officer 
Responsi
ble 

Auditor 
Respon
sible 

455 Project 
Manage
ment 

2015/2
016 

Adrian 
Duffield 
(Head of 
Planning) 

Sandra 
Wildern 
(Team 
Leader 
Building 
Control) 

5. 
Authorisati
on of 
projects 

All current projects should be 
reviewed to ensure they have 
been correctly approved, and 
obtain retrospective approval if 
necessary.Furthermore all future 
projects should be approved in 
accordance with the 
methodology. 

Best PracticeTo 
authorise all projects 
in accordance with the 
published and 
approved project 
management 
methodology.Findings
A sample of ten 
projects were 
reviewed. ¿ One 
project the information 
was refused by the 
Project Manager, so 
no evidence of 
authorisation 
(SVAAP).¿ One 
incomplete business 
case (not yet a live 
project) so no 
evidence of 
authorisation 
(Berinsfield co-
location).¿ One project 
with no project 
business case (there 
is a powerpoint but 
this is not a business 
case or completed or 
authorisation). 
(GWP)¿ One project 
not started despite 
being recorded on 
project register as 
underway, so no 
authorisation 
(Ridgeway Leisure 
Facility)¿ One rejected 
by cabinet (Mobile 
working).¿ Two 
correctly authorised. 
(Broadway seating 
and Didcot Leisure 
Facility)¿ One project 
approved, but there is 
no evidence of a 

High Recommendation is AgreedAll 
project business cases will be 
brought up to date and correct 
records maintained. Corporate 
Management Team will review 
the position in 
July.Management response:  
Anna Robinson, strategic 
director 

31/07/20
16 

Sandra 
Wildern 
(Team 
Leader 
Building 
Control) 

Sandy 
Bayley 

P
age 94

A
genda Item

 9



 

 13 

 

Recommendations proposed for closing off the database       Appendix 1  
  

Rec 
ID 

Audit 
Name 

Audit 
Year 

Head of 
Service 

Service 
Manager 

Recomme
ndation 
Name 

Recommendation Rationale Risk 
Rati
ng 

Management Response Implem
entation 
date 

Officer 
Responsi
ble 

Auditor 
Respon
sible 

project business case. 
(Vale Go Active ¿ Get 
Healthy 2014/15)¿ 
One project with 
project business case 
but no authorisation. 
(WCH Marketing Plan 
(Beacon))The 
remaining project did 
not engage with the 
audit process. (Fate of 
Crowmarsh 
Gifford)RiskFailure to 
ensure all projects are 
appropriately 
authorised, could 
result in uncontrolled 
projects and resources 
used inappropriately, 
which can lead to 
financial and 
reputational loss.  

P
age 95

A
genda Item

 9



 

 14 

 

Recommendations proposed for closing off the database       Appendix 1  
  

Rec 
ID 

Audit 
Name 

Audit 
Year 

Head of 
Service 

Service 
Manager 

Recomme
ndation 
Name 

Recommendation Rationale Risk 
Rati
ng 

Management Response Implem
entation 
date 

Officer 
Responsi
ble 

Auditor 
Respon
sible 

456 Project 
Manage
ment 

2015/2
016 

Adrian 
Duffield 
(Head of 
Planning) 

Sandra 
Wildern 
(Team 
Leader 
Building 
Control) 

6. Review 
of projects 

RecommendationAll current 
projects should be reviewed to 
ensure they are subject to the 
appropriate scrutiny.Furthermore 
all future projects should be 
scrutinised in accordance with 
the methodology. 

Best PracticeTo 
review all stages of all 
projects 
contemporaneously in 
accordance with the 
published and 
approved project 
management 
methodology.Findings
The Great Western 
Park sports facilities 
project identified a 
number of concerns 
as follows:¿ Project 
business case is not in 
format prescribed by 
the toolkit. (style and 
content)¿ No evidence 
of project approval.¿ 
Project sponsor has 
left the council and not 
been replaced on the 
project, so there is no 
project sponsor.¿ No 
evidence of a project 
board.¿ No evidence 
of Terms of Reference 
(ToR) for the absent 
project board.¿ No 
documented project 
plan.¿ No evidence of 
monitoring by the 
project 
sponsor.RiskFailure to 
ensure the project is 
reviewed in 
accordance with the 
published and 
approved 
methodology, can 
result in delays, 
project creep and both 
financial and 
reputational loss. 

High Recommendation is 
AgreedNew projects 
commencing after 1 April 2016 
will have to comply with the 
project methodology¿s review 
and scrutiny requirements.  
Heads of service are 
responsible for ensuring their 
projects comply with the 
review and scrutiny 
requirements. They will report 
to Corporate Management 
Team in July to verify that the 
review and scrutiny 
arrangements have been 
complied with.Internal audit 
will carry out a spot check in 
August to test the 
verifications.Management 
response:  Anna Robinson, 
strategic director 

31/07/20
16 

Sandra 
Wildern 
(Team 
Leader 
Building 
Control) 

Sandy 
Bayley 

P
age 96

A
genda Item

 9



 

 15 

 

Recommendations proposed for closing off the database       Appendix 1  
  

Rec 
ID 

Audit 
Name 

Audit 
Year 

Head of 
Service 

Service 
Manager 

Recomme
ndation 
Name 

Recommendation Rationale Risk 
Rati
ng 

Management Response Implem
entation 
date 

Officer 
Responsi
ble 

Auditor 
Respon
sible 

458 Project 
Manage
ment 

2015/2
016 

Adrian 
Duffield 
(Head of 
Planning) 

Sandra 
Wildern 
(Team 
Leader 
Building 
Control) 

8. Project 
terms of 
reference 

1) Amend the guidance in the 
toolkit to include the requirement 
for project boards to have 
complete ToR, containing the 
following components.¿ 
Introduction ¿ Who has 
authorised the creation of this 
Board (the full council), 
confirmation that they have the 
power to create this board, and 
whether or not they have the 
authority to call upon outside 
expert opinion.¿ Membership ¿ 
This should detail by name and 
job title all the members, appoint 
the chair and deputy chair, and 
who will record the minutes.¿ 
Attendance ¿ What will be the 
quorum, both in numbers and 
specific attendees.¿ Frequency 
of meetings ¿ How many 
meetings per year, or during the 
life of the project, the timings of 
them, and frequency.¿ Calling of 
meeting ¿ These should be in 
accordance with the constitution 
of the council including notice 
period, and submission of 
documents date.¿ Remit ¿ Why 
does the board exist, what are 
its powers, what decisions can it 
make/recommend.¿ Reporting ¿ 
What is the timescale for 
producing the 
minutes/circulating minutes.¿ 
Limitations of authority ¿ Any 
restrictions placed upon the 
project board.2) Amend the 
Didcot Leisure Facility ToR to 
reflect the requirements above 
and the suspension of the 
project.3) Ensure all projects are 
reviewed to ensure ToR are in 
place and are effective and 
robust for all current project. 

Best PracticeAll 
committees, boards 
and groups that are 
formed, should have 
clear and detailed 
terms of reference 
(ToR) in place, which 
should be regularly 
reviewed to ensure 
they remain fit for 
purpose.FindingsThe 
project management 
toolkit does not have 
guidance on the 
requirement for 
drafting and 
implementing ToR for 
project boards. From 
the sample of ten 
projects reviewed only 
one project, the Didcot 
Leisure Facility 
project, had ToR for 
the project board in 
place, but these are 
not robust or effective 
as they lack a number 
of vital components 
and need redesigning. 
RiskFailure to ensure 
robust and 
comprehensive ToR 
are in place and 
ensuring they are 
current and match 
what the board are 
doing, demonstrate 
poor project 
governance, which 
could lead to financial 
and reputational loss. 

High Recommendation is Agreed 
but implementation 
deferredHeads of service to 
review all current projects in 
their areas and ensure they 
comply with the current project 
management toolkit. As the 
PM system is about to 
undergo a comprehensive 
review it isn¿t expedient, given 
current work pressures, to 
make piecemeal amendments 
to the toolkit. However, heads 
of service must ensure that the 
guidance in the toolkit is 
adhered to on all projects. 
Management response:  Anna 
Robinson, strategic director 

31/07/20
16 

Sandra 
Wildern 
(Team 
Leader 
Building 
Control) 

Sandy 
Bayley 

P
age 97

A
genda Item

 9



 

 16 

 

Recommendations proposed for closing off the database       Appendix 1  
  

Rec 
ID 

Audit 
Name 

Audit 
Year 

Head of 
Service 

Service 
Manager 

Recomme
ndation 
Name 

Recommendation Rationale Risk 
Rati
ng 

Management Response Implem
entation 
date 

Officer 
Responsi
ble 

Auditor 
Respon
sible 

516 Building 
Control 

2016/2
017 

Adrian 
Duffield 
(Head of 
Planning) 

Sandra 
Wildern 
(Team 
Leader 
Building 
Control) 

Personal 
protective 
equipment 
risk 
assessme
nt 

A personal protective equipment 
risk assessment form should be 
completed to ensure that the 
surveyors have the appropriate 
equipment for all types of 
situations when undertaking on-
site inspections, and is reviewed 
on an annual basis. 

Best PracticeA 
personal protective 
equipment risk 
assessment has been 
completed and is 
reviewed on an annual 
basis.FindingsThe 
councils have a 
personal protective 
equipment (PPE) 
policy in place that 
expects teams that 
require PPE to 
complete a PPE risk 
assessment.  From 
conversations, it was 
established that a PPE 
risk assessment has 
not been undertaken, 
so internal audit 
cannot place reliance 
that the PPE given to 
the building control 
surveyors is sufficient 
for all types of 
scenarios the 
surveyors might face 
when undertaking on-
site inspections.RiskIf 
a personal protective 
equipment risk 
assessment is not 
completed, there is a 
risk of building control 
surveyors not being 
equipped 
appropriately to 
protect them from all 
possible scenarios 
resulting in non-
compliance with the 
Health and Safety at 
Work Act 1974. 

High Recommendation is Agreed in 
PrincipleA spreadsheet has 
been in place for the last 3 
years which shows who has 
equipment and date it was 
issued.  This is monitored 
annually, every January, and 
new equipment ordered as 
required.Management 
response Team leader 
building control 

31/01/20
17 

Sandra 
Wildern 
(Team 
Leader 
Building 
Control) 

Nilesh 
Parmar 

P
age 98

A
genda Item

 9



 

 17 

 

Recommendations proposed for closing off the database       Appendix 1  
  

Rec 
ID 

Audit 
Name 

Audit 
Year 

Head of 
Service 

Service 
Manager 

Recomme
ndation 
Name 

Recommendation Rationale Risk 
Rati
ng 

Management Response Implem
entation 
date 

Officer 
Responsi
ble 

Auditor 
Respon
sible 

517 Building 
Control 

2016/2
017 

Adrian 
Duffield 
(Head of 
Planning) 

Sandra 
Wildern 
(Team 
Leader 
Building 
Control) 

Customer 
feedback 

The process of issuing customer 
feedback forms should be 
started up again to ascertain 
from the customer how satisfied 
they are with the service 
provided.  The privacy notice 
should also be included onto the 
feedback, if obtaining personal 
information, i.e. sex, race, etc. 

Best Practice 
 
Customer feedback 
forms are issued to 
customer along with 
the building 
regulations certificate. 
 
 
 
Findings 
 
Customer feedback 
forms are no longer 
issued to customers 
after the building 
regulation certificates 
have been issued.  It 
is noted that the 
feedback form used to 
be sent out with the 
building regulation 
certificates, but was 
stopped due to the fire 
at Crowmarsh offices 
and did not start up 
again. 
 
 
 
Risk 
 
If customer feedback 
is not sought, there is 
a risk of the building 
control team being 
complacent and the 
service not improving 
resulting in a possible 
decrease in market 
position. 

High Recommendation is Agreed in 
Principle 
 
Feedback does come from 
user groups, and customers 
also email any comments they 
have about the service.  The 
market share is looked at 
every month to check where 
we stand.  I will look into a 
customer feedback form next 
year. 
 
 
 
Management response: Team 
Leader Building Control 

30/04/20
17 

Sandra 
Wildern 
(Team 
Leader 
Building 
Control) 

Nilesh 
Parmar 

P
age 99

A
genda Item

 9



 

 18 

 

Recommendations proposed for closing off the database       Appendix 1  
  

Rec 
ID 

Audit 
Name 

Audit 
Year 

Head of 
Service 

Service 
Manager 

Recomme
ndation 
Name 

Recommendation Rationale Risk 
Rati
ng 

Management Response Implem
entation 
date 

Officer 
Responsi
ble 

Auditor 
Respon
sible 

587 Environ
mental 
Protectio
n 

2016/2
017 

Liz Hayden 
(Interim 
Head of 
Service) 

Ian Matten 
(Interim 
Head of 
Waste, 
Leisure, 
Parks and 
Environme
ntal 
Health) 

8b. Total 
Pest 
Control 
(TPC) 
contract 

8b) The TPC contract should be 
added to the council¿s contract 
register published on the 
council¿s website. 

Best 
PracticeContracts for 
services provided to 
the council are 
current, appropriately 
documented and 
recorded on the 
councils contracts 
register.FindingsIntern
al audit noted that the 
TPC contract went to 
tender in 2016 and 
this process was 
administered by the 
council¿s procurement 
department.  Sufficient 
evidence was 
provided to internal 
audit to show that from 
the 5 companies that 
produced quotes for 
the service, TPC was 
the best option.  It was 
also noted that the 
new contract held on 
file was a template 
version and not the 
complete and signed 
version.  The legal 
department also 
confirmed that they 
were not informed of 
the new contract as 
they only held a copy 
of the temporary 
contract that was 
drawn up for the 
period May 2009 to 
October 2010 in the 
contracts 
database.Further 
review identified that 
the contract for 
provision of the pest 
control service is not 

High Recommendation is Agreedb) 
The contract will be added to 
the council¿s contracts 
register.Management 
response: Environmental 
Protection Manager 

31/07/20
17 

Simon Hill 
(Team 
Leader 
(Environm
ental 
Protection)
) 

Fiona 
Kaluza 

P
age 100

A
genda Item

 9



 

 19 

 

Recommendations proposed for closing off the database       Appendix 1  
  

Rec 
ID 

Audit 
Name 

Audit 
Year 

Head of 
Service 

Service 
Manager 

Recomme
ndation 
Name 

Recommendation Rationale Risk 
Rati
ng 

Management Response Implem
entation 
date 

Officer 
Responsi
ble 

Auditor 
Respon
sible 

included within the 
council¿s contracts 
register which is 
publicised on its 
website.RiskIf a 
signed contract 
agreement is not 
obtained then the 
contractor is under no 
legally binding 
obligation to provide 
the service which may 
have a negative 
impact to the 
council¿s finances 
and reputation. 

P
age 101

A
genda Item

 9



 

 20 

 

 

P
age 102

A
genda Item

 9



South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils’ Audit and Governance Work Programme 

Audit and Governance 

Work Programme 
containing Joint Audit and Governance  

Committee work to be undertaken  
SEPTEMBER 2021 – JANUARY 2022  

       
 

 
What is the work programme? 
 
The Audit and Governance Work Programme belongs to South Oxfordshire District Council’s and Vale of White Horse District Council’s 
Joint Audit and Governance Committee and sets out a schedule of work for the period shown above.  It is a rolling plan, subject to 
change at each committee meeting; however, the councils may allocate additional work without notice.   
 

Item title Meeting date Lead officer Why is it here? Scope Notes 

Internal audit activity 
report - Second 
quarter 2021/22 
 

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 28 
Sep 2021 

Richard Green 
richard.green@s
outhandvale.gov.
uk  

The council audits its 
services through the 
internal audit service in 
line with the approved 
internal audit plan 
2020/21.  The report will 
summarise the 
outcomes of recent 
internal audit activity for 
the committee to 
consider. 

The committee is 
asked to review the 
report and the main 
issues arising and 
seek assurance that 
action has been or will 
be taken where 
necessary. 
 

This is a recurring 
agenda item and 
is updated at 
each meeting. 

Internal audit 
management report - 
Second quarter 
2021/22 
 

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 28 
Sep 2021 

Richard Green 
richard.green@s
outhandvale.gov.
uk 

The committee monitors 
the effectiveness of 
internal audit each 
quarter against the 
approved audit plan. 

To report on 
management issues, 
summarise progress 
against the audit plan, 
and summarise 
priorities. 
 

This is a recurring 
agenda item and 
is updated at 
each meeting.   

P
age 103

A
genda Item

 11



Item title Meeting date Lead officer Why is it here? Scope Notes 

South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils’ Audit and Governance Work Programme 

Treasury Management 
Monitoring Report 
2020/21 
 

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 28 
Sep 2021 

Richard 
Spraggett 
Richard.Spragget
@southandvale.g
ov.uk 

To receive the annual 
treasury management 
report. 

The committee is 
responsible for 
monitoring 
performance of the 
council's treasury 
management function. 
 

 

Internal Audit Plan 
Update 
 

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 28 
Sep 2021 

Richard Green 
Richard.Green@
southandvale.gov
.uk  

The committee is 
responsible for setting 
the internal audit plan 
and ensuring it remains 
up to date. 

To review the plan and 
update accordingly. 
 

 

Review of Business 
Grants 
 

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 25 
Jan 2022 

Richard Green 
Richard.Green@
southandvale.gov
.uk  

The committee agreed 
to review of the 
business grants paid, 
including the impact 
arising from the Covid-
19 pandemic. 

To consider the 
internal audit review. 
 

 

Statement of accounts 
2020/21 
 

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 25 
Jan 2022 

Simon Hewings 
simon.hewings@
southandvale.gov
.uk  

Each year the 
committee must 
approve each council's 
statement of accounts 
and ensure that they 
comply with the 
requirements of 
accounting practice. 

The committee is 
asked to approve each 
council's statement of 
accounts and 
supporting documents 
for final sign-off by the 
committee's co-chairs 
and the councils' 
external auditor. 
 

 

P
age 104

A
genda Item

 11



Item title Meeting date Lead officer Why is it here? Scope Notes 

South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils’ Audit and Governance Work Programme 

Corporate risk review 
 

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 25 
Jan 2022  

Yvonne Cutler-
Greaves 
Yvonne.CutlerGr
eaves@southand
vale.gov.uk 

The committee agreed 
to receive regular 
progress reports on the 
implementation of the 
risk management 
framework. 

To review and 
comment on progress. 
 

 

Health and safety 
progress review 
 

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 25 
Jan 2022 

Yvonne Cutler-
Greaves 
Yvonne.CutlerGr
eaves@southand
vale.gov.uk 

The committee agreed 
to receive regular 
reports on health and 
safety. 

To review and 
comment on the 
report. 
 

 

 

 

P
age 105

A
genda Item

 11

mailto:Yvonne.CutlerGreaves@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:Yvonne.CutlerGreaves@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:Yvonne.CutlerGreaves@southandvale.gov.uk

	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Printed minutes 05072021 1830 Joint Audit and Governance Committee

	6 Treasury Management Outturn Report 2020/21
	Appendix A - interest rate forecasts 2020-21
	Appendix B - prudential limits 2020-21
	Appendix C - South treasury activities 2020-21
	Appendix D - vale treasury activities 2020-21
	Appendix E - treasury investments at 310321
	Appendix F - glossary of terms

	7 Internal Audit Activity Report - Second Quarter 2021/22
	8 Internal Audit Management Report - Second Quarter 2021/22
	9 Internal Audit - Progress Update
	11 Work programme

